
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND BOARD MEETING 
June 27, 2012 

1:30 p.m. 
 

Lansing Center 
333 East Michigan Avenue 

Room 201 
Lansing, Michigan 48933 

 
REVISED AGENDA 

 
Call to Order 
A. Adoption of May 23, 2012 Minutes [Action Item] 
Public Comment [Please limit public comment to three (3) minutes] 
Communication [Information – Ellen Graham] 
 
B. Michigan Business Development Program  

1. Barracuda Networks, Inc. [Action Item - Marcia Gebarowski, Regional Project Manager] 
2. Brose New Boston, Inc. [Action Item – Joe Martin, Regional Project Manager] 

 
C. 21st Century Jobs Fund Program – Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund [Action Item – 

Mike Flanagan] 
 

D. Marketing – Official Pure Michigan Travel Guide Recommendation [Action Item – George 
Zimmerman] 

 
E. Tribal Gaming MOU -  [Action Item – Mark Morante] 

 
F. CDBG – [Action Item – Deborah Stuart] 

1. 2012 Downtown Infrastructure Grant [DIG] Project 
2. 2012 Application Guide and Policies 

 
New International Trade Crossing Agreement Public Comments 

 
G. New International Trade Crossing Agreement– [Action Item – Mark Morante] 

 
 



 

Michigan Strategic Fund Board Meeting Page 1 
May 23, 2012 

MICHIGAN STRATEGIF FUND BOARD MEETING 
MAY 23, 2012 

 
PROPOSED MEETING MINUTES 

 
A meeting of the Michigan Strategic Fund [MSF] Board was held on Wednesday, May 23, 2012 at the 
Michigan Economic Development Corporation, Lake Michigan Conference Room, 300 N. Washington 
Square, Lansing, Michigan. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Andrew Lockwood [acting for and on behalf of Andy Dillon, designation 
attached], Michael Finney, Mike Jackson, Bill Martin, Howard Morris [via phone], Allan Pohl [acting for 
and on behalf of Steve Hilfinger, designation attached], Richard Rassel, Shaun Wilson 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Paul Hodges, Sabrina Keeley, Jim Petcoff 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 25, 2012 MEETING MINUTES:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any 
questions from the Board.  There being none, Mr. Lockwood motioned approval of the April 25, 2012 
MSF Board meeting minutes.  Mr. Rassel seconded the motion.  The motion carried – 8 ayes; 0  nays; 
0 recused; 3 absent. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  Mr. Finney asked if there was any public comment.  There was none. 
 
COMMUNICATION:  Ellen Graham, Board Relations Liaison, advised the Board of the following: 

• Due to a quorum issue at the April 25, 2012 MSF Board meeting, Hyundai America Technical 
Center, Inc. and Sakthi Automotive Group USA, Inc. are brought before the Board this month for 
approval.   

• Revisions had been made to the Hyundai America Technical Center, Inc. Resolution to update 
Applicant milestones. 

• Item E. -  Delegation of Authority – a misprint had been corrected in the Resolution 
• Howard Morris is participating by phone for this meeting. 
• A recusal letter had been received from Richard Rassel for Item B. 1 and 2. 
• A recusal letter had been received from Shaun Wilson for Item B.4. 

 
MICHIGAN BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

 
[Richard Rassel recused.] 
 
Resolution 2012-52 – Hyundai America Technical Center, Inc. 
Marcia Gebarowski, Regional Project Manager, provided the Board with information about this action 
item and introduced guests:   
Ms. Gebarowski provided the Board with an overview of the project.  The Applicant plans to expand an 
existing operation in Michigan, make investments and create jobs related to the research and development 
of automotive components.  Ms. Gebarowski further advised that since the April 25, 2012 Board meeting, 
the milestones for the Applicant have changed and are reflected in the current Resolution. 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Michigan Business Development Program 
[MBDP] proposal as outlined in the term sheet submitted by the applicant.  Closing of the MBDP 
proposal is subject to available funding at the time of closing, completion of due diligence, finalization of 



 

Michigan Strategic Fund Board Meeting Page 2 
May 23, 2012 

all  MBDP transaction documents.  The commitment will remain valid for 90 days with the approval for 
the MSF Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 30 days. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  There being none, Mr. 
Martin motioned approval for Resolution 2012-52.  Mr. Pohl seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried – 7 ayes; 0 nays; 1 recused; 3 absent. 
 
Resolution 2012-53 – Sakthi Automotive Group USA, Inc.  
Ms. Gebarowski provided the Board with information about this action item and introduced guests: 
Ms. Gebarowski explained to the Board the Applicant plans to open a new operation in Michigan, make 
investments and create jobs related to the manufacturing of automotive components. 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Michigan Business Development Program 
[MBDP} proposal as outlined in the term sheet submitted by the applicant.  Closing of the MBDP 
proposal is subject to available funding at the time of closing, completion of due diligence, finalization of 
all MBDP transaction documents.  The commitment will remain valid for 90 days with the approval for 
the MSF Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 30 days. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  There being none, Mr. 
Wilson motioned approval for Resolution 2012-53.  Mr. Jackson seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried – 7 ayes; 0 nays; 1 recused; 3 absent. 
 
[Richard Rassel returns to the meeting.] 
 
Resolution 2012-54 – Credit Acceptance Corporation 
Ms. Gebarowski provided the Board with information about this action item and introduced guests:  
Rochelle Friedman; Mark Adams, Kenneth Booth; Jerry Bach 
Mr. Booth provided the Board with an overview of the project.  The Applicant plans to grow their 
employment at two existing company facilities in the City of Southfield in order to meet future staffing 
needs of the entire organization, make investments and create jobs related to the servicing of automotive 
consumer loans. 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Michigan Business Development Program 
[MBDP] proposal as outlined in the term sheet submitted by the Applicant.  Closing the MBDP program 
proposal is contingent upon availability of funding at the time of closing, completion of due diligence, 
and finalization of all MBDP transaction documents.  Commitment will remain valid for 90 days with 
approval from the MSF Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 30 days. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  Mr. Rassel inquired 
regarding the competition of the site for this expansion.  Ms. Friedman responded India, Puerto Rico and 
Nevada were in contention for this project, however, Southfield offered the most competitive package.  
Mr. Finney asked about the availability of a description of the tax abatement from the City of Southfield.  
Ms. Gebarowski responded this information was included in the Term Sheet, item #9.  There being no 
further questions, Mr. Lockwood motioned approval for Resolution 2012-54.  Mr. Rassel seconded 
the motion.  The motion carried – 8 ayes; 0 nays; 0 recused; 3 absent. 
 
[Shaun Wilson recused.] 
  



 

Michigan Strategic Fund Board Meeting Page 3 
May 23, 2012 

Resolution 2012-55 – Access Business Group, LLC 
Joshua Hundt, Senior Regional Project Manager, provided the Board with information regarding this 
action item and introduced guests:  Teresa, Karen Hinkle; Business Development Manager; Rob Hunter, 
Vice President; George Haga, Ada Township Supervisor 
Mr. Haga provided the Board with an overview of the project.  Access Business Group LLC is the supply 
chain entity for Alticor and its affiliated companies, including Amway Corporation, a large multi-level 
marketing company.  The company was formed in 2001 to focus on providing and executing global 
supply chain for the family of companies to distribute finished products throughout the world.  The 
Applicant plans to open a new operation in Michigan, making investments and creating jobs related to the 
manufacture of nutritional products in the Township of Ada.  The operation is planned to produce 
compressed tablets, hard shell tablets, and soft gel capsules.  Approximately 75-80% of the volume will 
be exported to foreign markets. 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the Michigan Business Development Program 
[MBDP] proposal as outlined in the term sheet submitted by the Applicant.  Closing the MBDP program 
proposal is contingent upon availability of funding at the time of closing, completion of due diligence, 
and finalization of all MBDP transaction documents.  Commitment will remain valid for 90-days with the 
approval from the MSF Fund Manager to extend the commitment an additional 30 days. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  Mr. Rassel asked the 
average wage of the nutritional tech positions.  Mr. Hunter responded $16.30/hour plus benefits.  There 
being no further questions, Mr. Jackson motioned approval for Resolution 2012-55.  Mr. Pohl 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried – 7 ayes; 0 nays; 1 recused; 3 absent. 
 
[Shaun Wilson returns to the meeting.] 
 

PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND PROGRAM 
 
Resolution 2012-56 – The Gilbert Residence 
Diane Cranmer, IDRB Specialist, provided the Board with information on this action item and introduced 
guest – Derek McGill, CEO/Administrator, The Gilbert Residence. 
Mr. McGill provided the Board with an overview of the project.  Phase I of the project will include the 
refurbishing of the 29 assisted living units of the existing building.  Phase II is the expansion of the New 
Memory Care “Grace Hall” unit.  It will replace the existing 10 bed unit with a new 28 bed unit.  The unit 
will be a licensed Home for the Aged, and will consist of 28 private rooms and will be entirely funded by 
private pay.  Phase III will convert the existing Memory Care unit into a “main street” area with common 
spaces in providing new amenities for residents that will included a library, lounge, movie theatre, game 
room, wellness center and bistro-style dining. 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the adoption of a Bond Authorizing Resolution for an amount not 
to exceed $10,000,000. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  There being none, Mr. 
Rassel motioned approval for Resolution 2012-56.  Mr. Lockwood seconded the motion.  Ellen 
Graham, MEDC, took a Roll Call Vote: 
  



 

Michigan Strategic Fund Board Meeting Page 4 
May 23, 2012 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Ayes: Michael Finney, Mike Jackson, Andrew Lockwood [acting for and on behalf of Andy 

Dillon, designation attached], Bill Martin, Howard Morris [via phone], Allan Pohl [acting 
for and on behalf of Steve Hilfinger, designation attached], Richard Rassel, Shaun 
Wilson] 

 
Nays:  None 
 
Recused: None 
 
The motion carried – 8 ayes; 0 nays; 0 recused; 3 absent. 
 

TOOL AND DIE RECOVERY ZONE PROGRAM 
 
Resolution 2012-57 – PCS Company Amendment 
Karla Campbell, Manager, State Tax Incentives, provided the Board with information on this action item. 
Ms. Campbell explained to the Board that the Tool & Die Recovery Zone has enabled PCS Company to 
commit to additional investment and job growth.  Staff has received a new resolution passed by the City 
of Fraser supporting an MSF approved amendment of the original recovery zone to include an additional 
contiguous parcel for the remaining three years.  Under MCL 125.2688d(7), the MSF may modify an 
existing Recovery Zone to add additional property under the same terms and conditions as the existing 
Recovery  Zone if the additional real property is contiguous to the existing qualified tool and die business 
property, will become qualified tool and die business property once it is brought into operation and the 
City of Fraser has consented to the modification. 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends an amendment of the existing Recovery Zone and MOU to include 
the real property parcel 11-32-205-005 for PCS Company for the remaining three years with an expiration 
date of December 31, 2015. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  There being none, Mr. 
Rassel motioned approval for Resolution 2012-57.  Mr. Wilson seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried – 8 ayes; 0 nays; 0 recused; 3 absent. 
 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 
Resolution 2012-58 – Delegation of Authority – SSBCI Loan Participation Agreement and SSBCI 
Cash Collateral Deposit Agreement 
Liz Alexandrian, Capital Service Associate, provided the Board with information on this action item. 
The MBGF-LPP Participation Agreement includes template “waterfall” language which provides for 
priority of payments to the Lender and the MSF in a collection situation after a borrower defaults.  The 
waterfall language states that after an event of default, any proceeds collected by the lender in respect to 
any loans would be applied in the order that the loans closed – meaning that they would first pay for the 
cost of collection, then pay interest, fees, and principal with respect to the Prior loans, then pay on a pro-
rata basis on the subject loan, and lastly pay on any coincidental and future loans.  This waterfall language 
is not lien specific.  Therefore, the MSF could potentially be paid off with proceeds from collateral that 
are not specifically tied to the loan that is participated in depending on the order of loans closed.  This 
language could also work the opposite way, in that collateral specifically tied to the loan in which the 
MSF participates, could potentially be used to pay off other debt held by the lender if that debt closed 
prior the subject loan.   



 

Michigan Strategic Fund Board Meeting Page 5 
May 23, 2012 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends the MSF Board delegate to the MSF Fund Manager or MSF 
Chairperson, with only one required to act, the authority to revise the MBFG-CSP Agreement, MBFG-
LPP Agreement, and all related and ancillary documents as may be necessary and appropriate, provided 
that the final terms and conditions of the MBFG Agreements are not otherwise materially adverse to the 
MSF, and to negotiate and execute all final documents on behalf of the MSF, subject to standard due 
diligence and the availability of funds. 
 
Board Discussion:  Mr. Finney asked if there were any questions from the Board.  There being none, Mr. 
Rassel motioned approval for Resolution 2012-58.  Mr. Martin seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried – 8 ayes; 0 nays; 0 recused; 3 absent. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:55 p.m. 







 

 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Board Members 

FROM:  Marcia Gebarowski, Regional Project Manager 

DATE: June 27, 2012 

SUBJECT: Approval of Michigan Business Development Request for $1,200,000 
Performance-based Grant to: 

  Barracuda Networks, Inc. (“Applicant” or “Company”) 
  3175 Winchester Boulevard 
  Campbell, California 95008 
  www.barracudanetworks.com 
 
MBDP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Business Development Program 
(“MBDP”) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MBDP is to provide 
incentives to businesses that create qualified jobs, make qualified investments, or a combination 
of both, in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (“MEDC Staff”) to review for eligibility, 
completeness, and adherence to MBDP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and 
to manage the MSF’s investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in 
summary form to provide context for the request and is drawn exclusively from materials 
submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from other relevant third party sources utilized by 
MEDC staff. 
 
HISTORY OF THE APPLICANT 
Barracuda Networks, Inc. is the worldwide leader in email and Web security appliances. The 
Company also provides world-class IM protection, application server load balancing and 
message archiving appliances.  Established in in 2004, Barracuda Networks is a privately-held 
corporation with its international headquarters and manufacturing facility based in Campbell, 
California. Barracuda Networks has offices in eight international locations and distributors in 
more than 80 countries worldwide. 
 
The Company received a Michigan Economic Growth Authority tax credit in 2008 and collected 
a small portion of that credit for two years. The Applicant has agreed to forego that incentive as 
part of this incentive request. 
 
 
 



 

2 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The Applicant plans to expand their footprint in the City of Ann Arbor to enable the Michigan 
office to capture future growth in employment versus HQ space in California, make investments 
and create jobs related to computer product engineering and innovation. 
 

a) The Applicant is a “Qualified Business”, as defined in MCL 125.2088r(9)(b), that is 
located and operates in Michigan. 

b) The project will be located in City of Ann Arbor. The City has offered a “staff, financial, 
or economic commitment to the project” in the form of a property tax abatement. The 
City of Ann Arbor will consider a 5 year PA 198, estimated value of approximately 
$85,150. 

c) The Applicant has demonstrated a need for the funding based on the critical need to be 
located in downtown Ann Arbor to attract the right talent and competing with premium 
downtown lease rates compared to available office capacity at the headquarters building 
owned by the Company, as well as investing in additional space in the lease at the project 
site to accommodate future growth. 

d) The Applicant plans to create 174 Qualified New Jobs above a statewide base 
employment level of 148. 

e) The project meets the program guidelines as follows: the proposed project involves out of 
state competition with the Applicants headquarter facility in California, and the Applicant 
has indicated that both investment and job creation related to this project will commence 
in 2012.   

 
INCENTIVE OPPORTUNITY 
This project involves the creation of 174 Qualified New Jobs though the Company anticipates 
the project will  create a total of 184 new jobs, and a capital investment of up to $6.2 million in 
the City of Ann Arbor. The requested incentive amount from the MSF is $1.2 million in the form 
of a performance-based grant. Please see below for more information on the recommended 
action. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEDC Staff recommends (the following, collectively, “Recommendation”): 
 

a) Approval of the MBDP Proposal as outlined in the term sheet attached to the proposed 
Resolution (collectively, “MBDP Proposal”); 

b) Closing the MBDP Proposal, subject to available funding under the MBDP at the time of 
closing (“Available Funding”), satisfactory completion of due diligence, (collectively, 
“Due Diligence”), finalization of all MBDP transaction documents, and further subject to 
the following terms and conditions: 

Commitment will remain valid for 90 days with approval for MSF Fund Manager to extend the 
commitment an additional 30 days. 

The MSF Incentives Subcommittee has indicated its support of the Recommendation. 













 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE: June 27, 2012 
 
TO: Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) Board Members 
 
FROM:  Joseph M Martin, Regional Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Michigan Business Development Request for $3,500,000 

Performance-based Grant to: 
 

  Brose New Boston, Inc. (“Applicant” or “Company”) 
  23400 Bell Road 
  New Boston, Michigan 48164 
  http://www.brose.com/ww/en/pub/home.htm 
 
MBDP PROGRAM AND ITS GUIDELINES 
On December 21, 2011, the MSF Board approved the Michigan Business Development Program 
(“MBDP”) and its guidelines. The primary intended objective of the MBDP is to provide 
incentives to businesses that create qualified jobs, make qualified investments, or a combination 
of both, in Michigan. 
 
SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
It is the role of the Project Management staff (“MEDC Staff”) to review for eligibility, 
completeness, and adherence to MBDP guidelines, the information provided by the applicant and 
to manage the MSF’s investment. Explanatory and background information is supplied in 
summary form to provide context for the request and is drawn exclusively from materials 
submitted by the applicant, and, as applicable, from other relevant third party sources utilized by 
MEDC staff. 
 
HISTORY OF THE APPLICANT 
Brose New Boston, Inc., one of seven entities under the larger Brose North America Group 
(Brose North America Holding, LP), is a leading manufacturer of mechatronic components for 
vehicle bodies and interiors. The companies currently have two facilities in Michigan, Brose 
North America, Inc. located in Auburn Hills and Brose Jefferson, Inc. located in Warren. Brose 
International GMBH, the parent to the North American Group, is an international supplier to 
automotive markets worldwide. 
 
The Applicant has not received any incentives from the MSF previously. Brose North America 
Group previously received employment tax credits through the Michigan Economic Growth 
Authority (MEGA) in 2002 for its facility in Auburn Hills and in 2008 for its facility in Warren. 
The estimated value of the 2002 credit for the Auburn Hills location was $14,417,536.  The 2008 
MEGA for the Warren facility was never activated and will be forgone as part of this MBDP 
request. 



 

 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The Applicant plans to open a new facility to expand its existing operations in Michigan, make 
investments and create jobs related to the manufacturing of high-technology mechatronic 
systems for automobiles. The project will supply Ford Motor Company and Chrysler with 
systems that include door modules that include power locks and latches and window regulators. 
 

a) The Applicant is a “Qualified Business”, as defined in MCL 125.2088r(9)(b), that is 
located and operates in Michigan. 

b) The project will be located in Huron Charter Township. Huron Charter Township has 
offered a “staff, financial, or economic commitment to the project” in the form of 
property tax abatement under P.A. 328 of 1998. The abatement will run for 12 years and 
has an estimated value of $3.7 million. 

c) The Applicant has demonstrated a need for the funding based on a cost disadvantage of 
not leasing space next to the Chrysler Toledo Facility. The Ohio location would offer the 
Company a competitive package of tax incentives in combination with no personal 
property tax. 

d) The Applicant plans to create 350 Qualified New Jobs above a statewide base 
employment level of 513.  As requirement of the performance based grant, the project 
will create or cause the creation of 100 additional jobs over the statewide base at the 
project site, or the Auburn Hills or Warren facility. 

e) The project meets the program guidelines as follows: the proposed project involves out-
of-state competition with Ohio; has a net positive return to Michigan; reuses an existing 
facility; and has the prospect of near-term job creation. 

 
INCENTIVE OPPORTUNITY 
This project involves the creation of 350 Qualified New Jobs and a capital investment of up to 
$61,773,500 in Huron Charter Township. The requested incentive amount from the MSF is 
$3,500,000 in the form of a performance-based grant. Please see below for more information on 
the recommended action. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
MEDC Staff recommends (the following, collectively, “Recommendation”): 
 

a) Approval of the MBDP Proposal as outlined in the term sheet attached to the proposed 
Resolution (collectively, “MBDP Proposal”); 

b) Closing the MBDP Proposal, subject to available funding under the MBDP at the time of 
closing (“Available Funding”), satisfactory completion of due diligence, (collectively, 
“Due Diligence”), finalization of all MBDP transaction documents, and further subject to 
the following terms and conditions: 

Commitment will remain valid for 90 days with approval for MSF Fund Manager to extend the 
commitment an additional 30 days. 

 
The MSF Incentives Subcommittee has indicated its support of the Recommendation. 
 



 

MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2012- 
 

APPROVAL OF A MICHIGAN BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM GRANT TO 
BROSE NEW BOSTON, INC. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan legislature passed legislation establishing the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund 
initiative that was signed into law;  
  
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides administrative 
services to the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) for 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund programs; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 125.2088r, the MSF shall create and operate the Michigan Business 
Development Program (“MBDP”) to provide grants, loans and other economic assistance to qualified businesses 
that make qualified investments or provide qualified new jobs in Michigan; 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 21, 2011, by Resolution 2011-184, the MSF (i) created the MBDP, (ii) 
adopted the guidelines for the MBDP (“Guidelines”), and (iii) approved the MSF Fund Manager to negotiate the 
final terms and conditions of the written agreements to be used to memorialize MBDP awards on the MSF’S 
behalf in accordance with the Guidelines (“Transaction Documents”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Guidelines require that MBDP awards over $1 million must be approved by the MSF 
Board; 
 
 WHEREAS, Brose New Boston, Inc. (“Company”) has requested a performance based MBDP grant of 
up to $3.5 million (“Grant  Request”),  along with other general terms and conditions which are outlined in the 
term sheet attached as Exhibit A (“Term Sheet”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC has recommended to the MSF Incentive Subcommittee that the MSF approve 
the Company’s Grant Request in accordance with the Term Sheet, subject to: (i) available funding, (ii) final due 
diligence performed to the satisfaction of the MEDC; and (iii) execution of the Transaction Documents within 90 
days of the date of this Resolution (“Time Period”), or this Resolution shall have no effect; provided however, at 
the sole discretion of the MSF Fund Manager, the Time Period may be extended for up to an additional 30 days 
(“MBDP Award Recommendation”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF Incentive Subcommittee has indicated its support of the MBDP Award 
Recommendation.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the MBDP Award 
Recommendation.  
 

Ayes: 
 
Nays: 
   
Recused:  

Lansing, Michigan  
June 27, 2012 



martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text

martinj11
Typewritten Text









 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  June 13, 2012 
 
TO:  MSF Board 
 
FROM:  Mike Flanagan – Manager, Equity Capital Programs 
 
SUBJECT: Program Proposal - Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund 
 
BACKGROUND 
The table below illustrates the growth of the venture capital industry in Michigan from 2001 to 2012.  The 
primary reason for this dramatic change has been Michigan’s efforts to expand the industry, which were 
started by Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) and the Michigan Strategic Fund 
(“MSF”) over a decade ago.  These efforts included the Michigan Life Science Corridor, the Michigan 
Technology Tri-Corridor, the 21st Century Investment Fund, Venture Michigan Fund I & II, and Invest 
Michigan.  

Year Number of 
Venture Funds 

Capital Under 
Management 

Number of Venture 
Professionals 

2001 7 $500 million 18 
2012 35 $3 billion 82 

 
Michigan’s efforts have been successful at attracting and creating a vital segment of the capital markets.  
Venture capital represents the only institutional risk capital for early stage companies with high-growth 
potential.  Venture backed companies create roughly 10% of new jobs nationally, with a disproportionate 
amount in the high-wage, high-skill category, as well as over 15% of GDP nationally.   
 
As of the most recent data from the Michigan Venture Capital Association (“MVCA”), Michigan ranks 
18th nationally in venture capital deployed in state, up from 25th in 2006.   
 
However, the state needs to continue to support the venture industry to be competitive regionally and 
nationally.  Michigan still lags far behind states like California, Illinois, and Pennsylvania, which had $12 
billion, $600 million, and $540 million in venture investments respectively in 2010.  Michigan by 
comparison had approximately $215 million in venture investments in the same period.  This is no 
surprise, as all of these other states had significant head-starts in building their respective venture 
industries through public efforts. 
 
There is no reason that Michigan cannot be in the top tier of the venture industry nationally in the future.  
Michigan ranks 5th nationally in number of patents awarded, is in the top 15 in university innovation (the 
University of Michigan ranks 4th), is in the top 5 states for science and engineering doctorates, and ranks 
2nd in industrial R&D spending.  In other words, Michigan is near the top in most categories that are the 
critical drivers of good venture deals, but the venture industry needs to continue to grow in order to 
support and integrate with this critical foundation.  If not, the State will continue to see innovative, 
growth-oriented companies find capital elsewhere, and we will surrender that economic growth to other 
states. 
  



PROGRAM PROPOSAL 
Staff proposes launching the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (“VDF”), which is modeled after 
the successful programs that were administratively served by the MEDC in the early 2000s.  Those 
programs had the goal of helping to seed promising young venture firms to grow the industry in the state.  
Some of the state’s successful funds were originally seeded by those programs, including Arboretum 
Ventures I, North Coast Technology Investors, T-Gap, and Apjohn Ventures.  The new VDF program 
hopes to help seed similarly promising young funds that will grow into larger funds in subsequent years.  
 
The VDF will have all of the following goals:  
 

• Increase the number of viable first and second time funds in the state 
• Grow the venture industry in MI 
• Increase the amount of venture investments in the state 
• Increase the number of venture professionals in the state 
• Create more and better jobs 

 
A total of $9 million is targeted at the VDF program over a two year period.  The initial request for 
funding of $5,000,000 million from the Jobs for Michigan Investment Fund (the “Investment Fund”) is 
expected to last approximately one year.  
 
RESULTS OF THE PUBLIC HEARING  
The MSF Act requires that a public hearing be held to provide the opportunity for the general public to 
comment on the proposed VDF Program Guidelines and the proposed resolution.  MEDC Staff held a 
public hearing on May 9, 2012 at the Michigan Venture Capital Association (“MVCA”).  Approximately 
20 people attended the hearing and provided significant feedback that helped to gain confidence in the 
program’s viability and improve it in some respects.  The minutes from the public hearing are attached as 
Exhibit A (“VDF Public Hearing Minutes”).  In summary: 
 

• The VDF Program received broad and significant support and was considered a valuable tool that 
will help to grow the venture industry and achieve the other goals outlined above.  

 
• There were several comments on minor issues within the guidelines that were helpful in making 

small adjustments to the guidelines.  
 

• One commenter suggested that the size of the MSF commitment to the awardee funds was too 
small to be a compelling draw for additional investors.  That opinion was rebutted by several 
attendees that felt a $2.25 million commitment was valuable and that it would offer the MSF, 
given the overall program allocation, the ability to diversify its investments.   
 

• Another commented that requiring two managing partners/director in order to apply is not 
economical given the size of the funds, and suggested one partner is enough.  Several other 
attendees disagreed and commented that smaller funds can support 2 partners, with multiple 
successful examples in Michigan.  MEDC Staff feels that having at least 2 partners is critical in 
providing capacity and expertise to the funds, and is a key factor in attracting other limited 
partners to the funds.  
 

• Several attendees commented that a cap on MSF returns under the VDF Program would not be a 
significant factor in attracting additional investors and may in fact create a complication to the 
process.  

 



 

 

MEDC Staff incorporated several points from the public hearing into the final VDF Program Guidelines 
however, the Program in general has remained largely unchanged. 
 
PROGRAM GUIDELINES 
The VDF Program would operate under the following general guidelines. The complete guidelines are 
attached to the VDF Program approval resolution:  
 

Eligibility 
• Venture funds are required to have raised $1 million in private capital at the time of application, 

from at least 3 unrelated investors, which must be evidenced by signed investor commitments.  
Funds that have raised more than $25 million are not eligible to apply.  Funds with target sizes 
greater than $50 million will not qualify. 
 

• The General Partners of applicant funds must have committed to invest in the fund a minimum of 
1% of the total fund size.  
 

• Venture funds seeking to apply must meet all of the following additional minimum criteria:  
o Must be headquartered in Michigan; 
o Must have a minimum of 2 managing partners/directors; 
o Must be a first or second generation fund (fund I or II; not required to be first time fund 

managers) 
 

• Preference will be given to venture funds that are members of the MVCA. 
 

• Preference will be given to venture funds that have strong advisory and/or mentorship 
relationships, especially in the case of first-time fund manager applicants.  
 

• Preference will be given to venture funds that have not previously received investment(s) from 
the Michigan Strategic Fund or MEDC.  Funds that have received previous investment from the 
MSF or MEDC which makes up more than 20% of the fund size will not qualify to receive 
additional state funding from the Venture Development Program.  

 
• Applicants will be required to submit comprehensive information regarding the fund, including 

management team experience, track record, investment profile and philosophy, a financial plan, 
and references, among other information.   
 

• All proposals will undergo a two-step evaluation process involving external review by an 
independent peer review expert and internal review by a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) 
appointed by the MSF. 
 

• All awards will be subject to available funding and standard due diligence, including civil and 
criminal background checks.  
 

• The program will charge an application fee of $1,000.    
 

Approved Funds 
• The Program will invest as a limited partner up to $2.25 million per qualified venture capital 

fund.   
 
 



 

 

• Approved venture funds will receive a provisional commitment of $2.25 million, which shall be 
fully committed in tranches contingent on the following milestones: 
 

1. First Tranche = $125,000: contingent on execution of an agreement with the MSF, 
committing the fund to raise a total of $8 million from other investors within 24 months.  
Funds may be used for, but are not limited to, operational expenses, including fund 
raising activities.  These funds can be drawn during the fund raising period as an advance 
on the limited partner commitment. 
 

2. Second Tranche = $1 million:  contingent on fund receiving commitments totaling $4 
million from at least three (3) other unrelated investors within 12 months of the initial 
disbursement, which must be evidenced by signed commitment agreements.  These funds 
must be drawn proportionately and concurrently to other limited partner funds. 
 

3. Third Tranche = $125,000: committed concurrently with second tranche so long as fund 
continues to fund raise.  Funds may be used for, but are not limited to, operational 
expenses, including fund raising activities.  These funds can be drawn during the fund 
raising period as an advance on the limited partner commitment. 
 

4. Fourth Tranche = $1 million:  contingent on fund receiving commitments totaling $8 
million from at least three (3) other unrelated investors within 24 months from the initial 
disbursement, which must be evidenced by signed investor commitments.  These funds 
must be drawn proportionately and concurrently to other limited partner funds. 

 
• Should an approved fund fail to meet any of the scheduled milestones, the MSF may, at its 

discretion, rescind subsequent tranches of its commitment and commit those funds to other 
qualified applicants.  
 

• Approved venture funds shall execute a Limited Partnership Agreement with the MSF.   
 
Approved funds shall also execute a side letter with the MSF, requiring, among other things, that 
the fund invest in Michigan companies, at minimum, an amount equal to the MSF investment into 
the fund.  

• Approved venture funds shall be subject to periodic reporting requirements.    
 
 
APPLICATION PROCESS 

• Applications will be accepted starting June 28, 2012.  All applications must be submitted by July 
31, 2012.   

 
• All applications will undergo a two-step evaluation process involving external review by an 

independent peer review expert and internal review by a JEC appointed by the MSF Fund 
Manager. The JEC will make final recommendations for awards to the MSF Board.   
 

• Detailed information on the Venture Development Fund process and program requirements are 
attached as Exhibit A (“VDF Program Guidelines”) 

 
PEER REVIEW  
After extensive due diligence of qualified candidates, MSF Staff recommends the selection of Credit 
Suisse Asset Management, LLC (“Credit Suisse”) to conduct a peer review for the VDF Program.  Credit 
Suisse is one of the world’s leading financial institutions and an industry leader in the management of 



 

 

private equity fund of funds.  Credit Suisse manages both the 21st Century Investment Fund and Venture 
Michigan Funds I & II for the State of Michigan, helping the State build its venture capital, private equity, 
and mezzanine markets over the last six years.   
 
There are significant advantages in having Credit Suisse conduct the peer review as compared to other 
potential peer review candidates:  
 

• Credit Suisse has indicated that it will conduct the peer review for the VDF Program at no charge 
to the Michigan Strategic Fund.   
 

• Credit Suisse has also indicated that every fund awarded through the VDF Program will be 
considered for co-investment from the Venture Michigan Fund II program (managed by Credit 
Suisse), which would provide significant leverage on MSF dollars, and provide even greater 
opportunity for awardee funds to reach critical mass;   
 

• At a minimum, all applicant funds will gain exposure to Credit Suisse for possible future 
investment, and hopefully learn from the process.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
MEDC Staff recommends all of the following to the MSF Board:  
 

• Approval of the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund Guidelines as set forth in the VDF 
Program approval resolution; 
 

• Allocation of funding in the amount of $5,000,000 from the Investment Fund to the Pure 
Michigan Venture Development Fund; 
 

• Selection of Credit Suisse as a peer reviewer to evaluate the proposals submitted in response to 
the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund and subsequently recommends the MSF Board 
delegate to the MSF Fund Manager the authority to negotiate and execute a contract with Credit 
Suisse for this purpose; 

 
• Delegation to the MSF Fund Manager of the authority to develop and approve the scoring and 

evaluation criteria and process to be used by the independent peer reviewer and the JEC in 
evaluating proposals received under the VDF program;  

 
• That the MSF authorize the Fund Manager to appoint members of a JEC for the purpose of 

reviewing the results of the peer review and making final recommendation for award to the MSF; 
 

• That the MSF Board delegate to the MSF Fund Manager the authority to negotiate and finalize all 
terms, conditions, investment agreements and all other related agreements for the VDF Program; 

 
• That the MSF authorize the Fund Manager to revise the guidelines of the VDF program in 

consultation with the MSF Investment Subcommittee. 
 

The MSF Investment Subcommittee has indicated its support of these recommendations.  
 
 

  



 

 

Exhibit A 
 

Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund Public Hearing  
Minutes 

May 9, 2012 
 

The Michigan Economic Development Corporation held a public hearing to discuss the Pure 
Michigan Venture Development Fund on May 9, 2012 at the office of the Michigan Venture 
Capital Association at 115 West Huron Street, 3rd Floor, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104. 
 
MEDC State Employees Present:  Mark Morante 
MEDC Corporate Employees Present:  Mike Flanagan, Emily Heintz, Paul Brown 
 

I. Call to Order 
a. Meeting was brought to order by Mike Flanagan at 10:15am 

II. Program Overview 
a. Staff proposes launching the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (“VDF”), 

which is modeled after the successful programs that were executed in the early 
2000s by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC).  Those 
programs had the goal of helping to seed promising young venture firms to grow 
the industry in the state.  Some of the state’s successful funds were originally 
seeded by those programs, including Arboretum Ventures I, North Coast 
Technology Investors, T-Gap, and Apjohn Ventures.  The new VDF program 
hopes to help seed similarly promising young funds that will grow into larger 
funds in subsequent years.  

b. The VDF will have all of the following goals:  
i. Increase the number of viable first and second time funds in the state 

ii. Grow the venture industry in MI 
iii. Increase the amount of venture investments in the state 
iv. Increase the number of venture professionals in the state 
v. Create more and better jobs 

c. A total of $9 million is targeted at the VDF program over a two year period.  An 
initial request for funding of $5,000,000 million from the Jobs for Michigan 
investment fund (the “Investment Fund”) is expected to last approximately one 
year. 

III. General Discussion 
a. Venture funds seeking to apply must have a minimum of 2 managing 

partners/directors and must be headquartered in Michigan.  Sonali Vijayavargiya 
(Augment Ventures) commented that this criterion may hinder some venture 
funds.  She asked if a fund could locate their headquarters in Michigan but have 
a partner/director who lives in another state.   

i. Paul Brown responded that the Michigan Economic Development 
Corporation’s intent is to create a program that increases the amount of 
venture capital dollars and professionals in the state.  Mr. Brown stated 



 

 

that the MEDC doesn’t want to put unnecessary restrictions in the 
language of the program that may prevent this goal from being achieved.  
He posed the question about whether the group feels that this criterion 
would cause undue hardship for a new fund and new professionals. 

ii. Jason Townsend (Resonant Ventures) and Eric Green commented that 
they did not believe this criteria would cause undue hardship 

iii. Ian Bund (Plymouth Venture Partners) mentioned that he thinks the 
effort and funding programs MEDC has should focus on Michigan 

b. The operational expenses dollars associated with the VDF will roll into the 
limited partnership as an equity investment under the MSF legislation.  Chris 
Rizik (Renaissance Ventures) asked if this could be explained further.   

i. Mike Flanagan explained that the legislation in the investment act 
prohibits MEDC from making a separate grant for operational dollars.   

ii. Chris Rizik mentioned that he could see the operational expense dollars 
being considered an advance on the MEDC’s capital contribution.  He also 
mentioned that it would be helpful if there was a definition in the 
program language of what expenses are considered “management 
expenses.” 

iii. Jason Townsend suggested that applicants be asked to explain their 
personal financial plan was for the next ten years.  Chris Rizik agreed and 
stated that he thought the personal financial plan of the fund manager(s) 
was key to the viability of the fund. 

c. Ian Bund mentioned that, if the goal of the program is to create a program that 
increases the amount of venture capital dollars and professionals in the state, he 
feels this program will be successful in attracting younger venture capitalists that 
have insight into new industries that the more experienced venture capitalists 
are unfamiliar with.  He further stated that many of these newer industries are 
less capital intensive and could really make an economic impact in Michigan.  Ian 
stated that, in his experience, there are a few more recent funds that are 
currently raising money that he would really like to see be successful in 
completing their raise.  He questioned whether the fact that preference will be 
given to venture funds that have not previously received investment(s) from the 
Michigan Strategic Fund or MEDC is too restrictive.  Currently, funds that have 
received previous investment from the MSF or MEDC which makes up more than 
20% of the fund size will not qualify to receive additional state funding from the 
Venture Development Program.    

i. Paul Brown posed the question to the group whether they felt that the 
20% of the fund size threshold of investments from the MSF or MEDC 
should be higher. 

ii. Andy McColm stated that he felt the MEDC should factor in the total size 
of the fund in this guideline.  He gave the example that if the fund is $100 
million, this 20% investment by the MSF or MEDC is $20 million which is 
quite a large sum of money and as a taxpayer he would feel 
uncomfortable with MEDC making an equity investment that large.  
However, if the fund size is $5 million, the MEDC has only invested $1 



 

 

million and maybe this percentage should be increased to allow for 
additional dollars to be invested in promising funds.   

iii. Paul Brown posed the question to the group of whether the program 
should require first-time fund managers to have a partner or collaborator 
with more experience.  The group consensus was that this should be a 
consideration when reviewing the applications but not a requirement of 
the applicants.  

d. Jason Townsend voiced concerns over how long the application period is.  He 
mentioned that he is currently fundraising and is anxious to start deploying.  An 
application period that is greater than 30 days he feels would delay his current 
timeline.   

i. Chris Rizik countered that he believes a longer application period might 
encourage a greater number of new fund managers to participate which 
speaks more to the goals of the program. 

ii. Ian Bund commented that he believes MEDC should make sure to widely 
market this program to encourage the underdeveloped capital markets in 
areas of great potential such as Grand Rapids and Traverse City.  He also 
recommended that MEDC make it widely understood that this is a private 
sector focused program, not just an economic development program. 

e. Quantum Reach mentioned that he and his business partner have built 
relationships and have commitments and are interested in organizing their fund 
in Michigan.  He thought it would be useful for funds like his if the $2.25 million 
was used to attract private equity professionals from outside of the state and 
could be used as operation expense dollars.   

i. Mike Flanagan responded that he would need additional information but 
it sounded as if Quantum Reach had a pledge fund and might benefit 
from a program that is aimed at pledge funds.  MEDC currently does not 
have this type of program. 

IV. Mike Flanagan went through the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund Discussion 
Points handout: 

a. Program staff has received feedback that in the current fund raising 
environment, a $2.25 million commitment will not be enough of a compelling 
draw for additional investors to invest in first or second time funds.  Currently 
the program anticipates a $9 million allocation, which could award 4 funds at 
$2.25 million per fund.  Mike Flanagan asked whether the program should 
consider making a larger investment into fewer funds, which may create a better 
chance of success for awarded funds?   Should the program instead fund 3 funds 
at $3 million per fund, or 2 funds at $4.5 million per fund? 

i. Feedback from the group indicated that merit could be seen in any of 
these options. 

b. Program staff has received feedback that in the current fund raising 
environment, a $1,000 application fee may be too high for a new fund to afford.  
Mike Flanagan asked wither the program should consider reducing the 
application fee? 



 

 

i. Feedback from the group indicated that the application fee was not an 
impediment and this figure is comparable to what other private equity 
programs charge.  The SBA was given as an example, their application fee 
is $5,000.  

c. There may be applicants that have already raised significant funds over the $1 
million threshold at the time of application.  Mike Flanagan asked whether the 
program should limit, in those cases, the amount of the commitment that can be 
used up front for fund raising expenses? 

i. Feedback from the group indicated that the verbiage regarding the 
amount of the commitment from MEDC that can be used up front for 
fundraising expenses should not be changed. 

d. There is a $1 million minimum raised threshold at the time of application.  Mike 
Flanagan asked how many unrelated LP investors the group thought were 
appropriate to make up this minimum threshold.   

i. The group consensus was that there should be a required minimum 
number of LP’s at the time of application.  Ian Bund mentioned that he 
believed three unrelated limited partners should be required.  Jason 
Townsend agreed. 

e. Approved venture funds will receive a provisional commitment of $2.25 million, 
$250k of which will be for operational expenses, including fund raising activities.  
Mike Flanagan asked the group whether $250k provided a sufficient run way for 
operations. 

i. Eric Green stated that he believed $250k was a generous amount even if 
it was split into two tranches.  Jason Townsend agreed. 

f. If all milestones are achieved, the fund size will be $10.25 million at a minimum.  
Mike Flanagan asked whether the MSF should require a larger minimum fund 
size to be “viable”.   

i. Ian Bund stated that many successful first funds have been smaller and 
have gone on to create larger funds that have had a significant impact on 
the Michigan economy.  Jason Townsend agreed and suggested again 
that applicants be asked to explain their personal financial plan was for 
the next ten years because that spoke to the viability of the fund more 
than the amount of funds available for investment. 

g. Mike Flanagan questioned whether, given the difficult fund raising environment, 
MEDC should put a cap on returns to the program in order to draw for additional 
investors? 

i. Eric Green said he did not believe that a cap on MEDC’s returns would be 
much of an incentive to other LP’s.  Chris Rizik agreed.   

ii. Ian Bund stated that he felt that this cap may be viewed as a 
complication to the fund and may create more suspicion than interest.  
Michael Godwin agreed. 

h. The structure of this program as proposed, would award funds a conditional 
commitment of $2.25 million that can be earned-out through the completion of 
milestones.  Mike Flanagan questions how, if at all, this structure might 
complicate the fund raising process? 



 

 

i. Michael Godwin and Jason Townsend commented that they did not feel 
this complicated the fund raising process at all. 

ii. Ian Bund mentioned that he did not feel it complicated the fund raising 
process but suggested that maybe the first $125k tranche be an 
allocation that can be drawn down at any time.   

i. The operational expense dollars will have to roll into LP as an equity investment 
under the MSF legislation.  Mike Flanagan asked whether this was manageable 
from an accounting perspective of the fund?   

i. Jason Townsend mentioned this would be simple from an accounting 
perspective if the $125k tranche was treated as being in the same bucket 
as the $1 million tranche.  Ian Bund agreed. 

V. Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 12:00pm by Mike Flanagan 
 

 
These are the minutes of the May 9, 2012 Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund Public 
Hearing, respectively submitted, May 9, 2012 by Emily Heintz. 



 
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

 
RESOLUTION 2012- 

 
APPROVAL OF PURE MICHIGAN VENTURE DEVELOPMENT FUND 

 
WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 established the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund 

initiative; 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for basic 
research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of products, processes 
and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies to create jobs within the 
State of Michigan; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 

abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the Michigan Strategic 
Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 125.2088k; 

 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation provides administrative services 

for the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) for 21st Century Jobs Fund programs (“21CJF Programs”); 

WHEREAS, the MSF desires to create the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (the 
“Venture Development Fund”) to assist in the growth of the venture industry by increasing the number of 
viable venture funds, with the intent of increasing the number of venture investments in the State;    

 
 WHEREAS, the MSF has reviewed proposed guidelines and process for the Venture 

Development Fund (“Venture Development Fund Program Guidelines”), which includes provisions 
required by MCL 125.2088k and establishes a competitive proposal process for making awards to 
qualified venture funds. The Venture Development Fund Program Guidelines are attached to this 
Resolution; and  

WHEREAS, the MSF desires to initiate the competitive process to make awards to qualified 
venture funds under the Venture Development Fund. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the MSF approves the attached Venture 

Development Fund Program Guidelines and authorizes implementation of the Venture Development 
Fund; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF authorizes the MSF Fund Manager to modify the 

Venture Development Fund Program Guidelines as may be necessary or appropriate, if the modifications 
are not materially adverse to the interests of the MSF. 

 
Ayes:  

 
 Nays: 
 

Recused: 
 
Lansing, Michigan  
June 27, 2012 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Michigan Strategic Fund Board 

21st Century Jobs Fund 
 

Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund 
 

Program Application, Process & Guidelines 

Release Date: June 28, 2012 

 
 
 

  



 

2 
 

Table of Contents 
 

I. IMPORTANT DATES and REMINDERS ....................................................................................... 4 

II. INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................ 5 

A. Program Overview ............................................................................................................................ 5 

B. Program Goals .................................................................................................................................. 5 

III. ELIGIBLITY, REQUIREMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS .............................................................. 5 

A. Venture Fund Eligibility Criteria ...................................................................................................... 5 

B. Technology Sector Requirement ....................................................................................................... 6 

C. For-Profit Entity ................................................................................................................................ 7 

D. Application Fee ................................................................................................................................. 7 

E. Financial Contributions ..................................................................................................................... 7 

F. Awards, Agreements and Required Terms ....................................................................................... 7 

G. Estimated Timeline ........................................................................................................................... 8 

IV. APPLICATION PROCESS .............................................................................................................. 9 

A. Submission ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

B. Confidentiality of Submitted Materials ............................................................................................. 9 

V. REVIEW PROCESS ....................................................................................................................... 10 

VI. APPLICATION FORMAT – BUSINESS PLAN........................................................................... 10 

A. Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................ 11 

B. Partnership Information .................................................................................................................. 11 

C. Fund Raising Information ............................................................................................................... 11 

D. Investment Focus ............................................................................................................................ 11 

E. Investment Profile ........................................................................................................................... 12 

F. Investment Process .......................................................................................................................... 12 

G. Milestones and Timing.................................................................................................................... 13 

H. Financial Plan .................................................................................................................................. 13 

I. Management Team .......................................................................................................................... 13 

J. Track Record ................................................................................................................................... 14 

K. Legal documents ............................................................................................................................. 14 

L. References ....................................................................................................................................... 15 



 

3 
 

M. A policy on conflict management ............................................................................................... 15 

Reference:  Summary Attribution Table ................................................................................................. 15 

VII. GOVERNING BOARD AND ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM .......................................... 15 

Legal Requirements .................................................................................................................................... 18 

 



 

4 
 

I. IMPORTANT DATES and REMINDERS 
 

• Applications will be accepted starting June 28, 2012 
 

• All applications must be received by July 31, 2012 in order to be considered for award 
 

• Questions from potential applicants regarding the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund 
(“Program”) will only be accepted via email sent to VDF@Michigan.org.  Responses to all 
qualifying questions will be posted on the MEDC’s website: 
 

o  www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund.  
 

• Proposals must be submitted to the MEDC via email sent to VDF@Michigan.org. Once the 
MEDC has received the application you will be contacted on how to pay the application fee.  
Proposals will not undergo peer review until the application fee has been received.  
 

• Venture funds should not submit an application fee until they have received notice from 
program staff.  MEDC Staff will conduct an initial review of the application prior to requiring 
the fee to ensure the application meets the minimum criteria of the Program. MEDC Staff will 
provide instructions for payment of the application fee upon verifying that the application meets 
the minimum requirements of the Program. 
 

• An independent peer review of the application will be conducted upon receipt of all qualified 
applications.  Applicant funds should plan to be available for face to face interviews with the peer 
reviewers. 
 

• Applications will not be accepted once available funding has been fully committed.  If additional 
funding designated for the Program or previous investments have liquidity events that are 
returned to the Program the application process will be reopened and announced on 
www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund.  
 

• Applicant proposals may not exceed 35 pages, utilizing ten (10) point font or greater, submitted 
as a single Portable Document Format (.pdf) file. Proposals in excess of 35 pages will be 
disqualified.  Application format requirements can be found in Section VI of this document. 
 

• Prior to final submission, please verify all of the specifications as described for Program as 
defined in this document are included. 

  

mailto:PMVMF@Michigan.org
http://www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureMatchFund
mailto:PMVMF@Michigan.org
http://www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureMatchFund


 

5 
 

II. INTRODUCTION 
 
Public Act 215 of 2005, Section 88k(2) (“MSF Act”) allows the Strategic Economic Investment Commercialization 
(“SEIC”) Board to award grants, loans  and investments from the 21st Century Jobs Fund for “…basic research, 
applied research, university technology transfer and commercialization of products, processes and services to 
encourage the development of competitive edge technologies to create jobs in the State.” Under Executive Order 
2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board 
transferred to the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”). 

 

A. Program Overview 

Under the 21st Century Jobs Fund Initiative, the MSF Board has been given the opportunity to 
foster the growth of innovative companies with the potential for high growth in Michigan. Early 
stage innovative companies often require venture capital in order to grow. 

Recognizing that Michigan has a relatively small venture capital industry, the MSF has approved 
the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (“VDF” or “Program”) to assist in the growth of 
the venture industry by increasing the number of viable venture funds, with the intent of 
increasing the number of venture investments in the state.  The program will ultimately encourage 
diversification of the state’s economy into competitive edge technology sectors, as defined in the 
MSF Act. 

The Program, through a peer-reviewed competitive process, will award qualifying first and 
second generation venture funds up to $2.25 million each.  It is anticipated that the Program will 
award up to four venture funds based on current and future MSF funding. 

B. Program Goals 

The Program has all of the following goals:  

• Increase the number of viable first and second time funds in the state 
• Grow the venture industry in MI 
• Increase the amount of venture investments in the state 
• Increase the number of venture professionals in the state 
• Create more and better jobs 
• Return of and on capital 

III. ELIGIBLITY, REQUIREMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS 

A. Venture Fund Eligibility Criteria 

• This Program is designed to invest in first and second generation funds in Michigan for the 
primary purpose of increasing their ability to raise additional funds and become viable entities.  
 

• To qualify, applicant venture funds are required to have raised $1 million in private capital from 
at least 3 unrelated investors at the time of application, which must be evidenced by signed 



 

6 
 

investor commitments.  Funds that have raised more than $25 million are not eligible to apply.  
Funds with target sizes greater than $50 million will not qualify for this Program. 
 

• Venture funds seeking to apply must meet all of the following additional minimum criteria:  
 

o Must be headquartered in Michigan 
o Must have a minimum of 2 managing partners/directors 
o Must be a first or second generation fund (fund I or II) 
o Fund managers do not need to be first time fund managers.  Preference will be given to 

experienced fund managers.  
 

• Preference will be given to venture funds that are members of the Michigan Venture Capital 
Association (“MVCA”) 
 

• Preference will be given to venture funds that have strong advisory and/or mentorship 
relationships, especially in the case of first-time fund manager applicants. 
 

• Preference will be given to venture funds that have not previously received investment(s) from 
the Michigan Strategic Fund or MEDC.  Funds that have received previous investment from the 
MSF or MEDC which makes up more than 20% of the fund size will not qualify to receive 
additional state funding from the Venture Development Program.  
 

• To qualify, venture funds must submit all information required under Section VI of this 
document. 
 

• Program staff will perform additional due diligence of applicant funds at its discretion prior to 
making any award, including civil and criminal background checks.  Funds shall provide 
information upon request to the satisfaction of program staff’s due diligence.  
 

• All proposals will be evaluated by independent peer review experts.   
 

B. Technology Sector Requirement 
 

• Applicants of the Program must be able to show how they will create jobs and commercialize 
product(s) within one or more of the competitive edge technology sectors defined in Section 
125.2088a of the MSF Act, as amended, and as determined by the MSF Board, including:  
 

1. Life Sciences Technology 
2. Advanced Automotive Manufacturing and Materials 
3. Homeland Security and Defense 
4. Alternative Energy 
5. Information Technology 
6. Agricultural Processing Technology 
7. and/or any other innovative technology as determined by the MSF Board 

 



 

7 
 

C. For-Profit Entity 
 

• Only for-profit entities are eligible to receive funding through the Program.  
 

• Eligible venture funds must be authorized to conduct business in the State of Michigan. For 
further details on eligibility requirements refer to Legal Requirements, Appendix A. 

 
D. Application Fee 
 

• A non-refundable application fee of $1,000, payable to the MEDC, will be due upon notification 
from the MEDC. The fee is not due at the time of application. In cases where an application is 
disqualified prior to undergoing a peer review, no fee will be required. MEDC Staff will provide 
instructions on payment of the application fee if the application meets the minimum requirements 
of the Program. 

 
E. Financial Contributions 
 

• The MSF Board requires that applicants will have already received commitments of at least $1 
million from at least 3 unrelated investors at the time of application.  Each proposal must include 
signed commitment agreements to evidence such commitments.  
 

• General Partners of applicant funds are required to commit to invest at least 1% of the total fund 
size into the fund. 
 

F. Awards, Agreements and Required Terms 
 

• The Program will invest as a limited partner up to $2.25 million per qualified venture capital 
fund.  Awards will be distributed in the form of equity investments or convertible notes at the 
discretion of the MSF after the peer review has been completed.   

 
• Approved venture funds will receive a provisional commitment of $2.25 million, which shall be 

final committed in tranches contingent on the following milestones:  
 

1. First Tranche = $125,000: contingent on execution of an agreement with the MSF, 
committing the fund to raise a total of $8 million from other investors within 24 months.  
Funds may be used for, but are not limited to, operational expenses including fund raising 
activities.  These funds can be drawn during the fund raising period as an advance on the 
limited partner commitment. 
 

2. Second Tranche = $1 million:  contingent on fund receiving commitments totaling $4 
million from at least three (3) other unrelated investors within 12 months of the initial 
disbursement, which must be evidenced by signed commitment agreements.  These funds 
must be drawn proportionately and concurrently to other limited partner funds. 
 

3. Third Tranche = $125,000: committed concurrently with second tranche so long as fund 
continues to fund raise.  Funds may be used for, but are not limited to operational 
expenses including fund raising activities.  These funds can be drawn during the fund 
raising period as an advance on the limited partner commitment. 



 

8 
 

4. Fourth Tranche = $1 million:  contingent on fund receiving commitments totaling $8 
million from at least three (3) other unrelated investors within 24 months from the initial 
disbursement, which must be evidenced by signed investor commitments.  These funds 
must be drawn proportionately and concurrently to other limited partner funds. 
 

• Should an approved fund fail to meet any of the above scheduled milestones, the MSF may at its 
discretion, rescind subsequent tranches of its commitment, and commit those funds to other 
qualified applicants.  

 
• Approved funds must execute a side letter with the MSF, requiring, among other things, that it 

invest in Michigan companies, at minimum, an amount equal to the MSF investment into the 
fund.  

 
• Approved venture funds shall be subject to periodic reporting requirements.    

 
• A total of $9 million is targeted at the VDF program overall.  The initial amount allocated to the 

Program by the MSF is $5 million.  The MSF may allocate additional funding to the VDF in the 
future. After investment awards have been officially announced, MEDC staff will contact each 
award recipient to set up a date and time to negotiate the contractual terms for the investment 
agreement and to structure a monitoring program.  Successful applicants will also be informed of 
the requirements for progress reports.  

 
• All contracts approved by the MSF will contain a provision that the Auditor General has access to 

the books and records, including financial records and all other information and data relevant to 
the terms of the contract related to the use of the investment.  

 
• As a condition of receiving an investment from the Program, a venture fund must agree to 

maintain its principal operations in Michigan for a minimum of three years and execute a 
repurchase agreement with the MSF that provides for the repurchase of a qualified investment if 
the business voluntarily relocates out of Michigan prior to the third anniversary of the execution 
of the Program investment agreement. 

 
• Successful proposals approved for funding by the MSF Fund Manager are subject to the final 

execution of a legal agreement and successful completion of a due diligence review including, 
among other things, criminal and civil background checks of the applicant.  Background checks 
will include, without limitation, affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, managerial employees, 
and any person or entity which directly or indirectly holds a pecuniary interest in that business 
entity of 20% or more.  Further details concerning this process are included in Legal 
Requirements, Appendix A. 
 
 

G. Estimated Timeline 
 

June 27, 2012 MSF Board final review and approval of the Program and Program 
Guidelines 

 
June 28, 2012  Publication of the Program Guidelines at: 

www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund 
 and opening of the Program to accept applications 

http://www.themedc.org/MichiganVentureFund


 

9 
 

 
July 24, 2012  Applicant questions due via e-mail 
 
July 27, 2012 Responses to remaining questions posted on MEDC Website at 

www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund  
 
July 31, 2012 Proposals in the form of a business plan must be received by the MEDC 

via email sent to VDF@Michigan.org  
 
Estimated 90 Review Period; an independent peer review will be conducted. 
days from payment Applicants should plan to be available for face to face interviews with 
of the application fee the peer review panel during this period. 
 
  

IV. APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
A. Submission 
 

• Applications must be sent by email to VDF@Michigan.org.   
 

• Proposals will be time stamped by the MEDC Staff. It is the sole responsibility of the applicants 
to submit proposals and application fees in a timely fashion.  
 

• Applicants will be notified by the MEDC with instructions on how to pay the $1,000 application 
fee after receipt of the Company application and verification that it meets the guidelines for 
submittal. 

 
• All questions from applicants must be submitted via email to VDF@Michigan.org.  Questions 

that are phoned, faxed, sent through regular mail, or emailed directly to MEDC staff or the MSF 
Board will not be accepted.  Answers to qualifying questions will be posted periodically at 
www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund; applicants are 
encouraged to check this website frequently.  
 

• Incomplete proposals will not be accepted or reviewed.  Any change or update to the 
acceptance of proposals will be posted on the MEDC website.  Such postings shall constitute 
constructive notice to the general public and to all applicants of any modifications or alterations 
of the deadline for proposals. Therefore, applicants are strongly encouraged to continuously 
check the MEDC website at: 

 
 www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund. 

 
B. Confidentiality of Submitted Materials 
 

• All proposal materials and materials generated throughout the competition, including, but not 
limited to, peer review materials, letters of commitment, biographical information, and due 
diligence information, submitted to the  MEDC and State of Michigan through the MSF Board 
may be subject to public disclosure under Michigan’s Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”).  
For further details on confidentiality requirements refer to the Legal and Policy Section, 
Appendix A. 
 

http://www.themedc.org/MichiganVentureFund
http://www.themedc.org/MichiganVentureFund
http://www.themedc.org/MichiganVentureFund
mailto:PMVMF@Michigan.org
mailto:PMVMF@Michigan.org
mailto:PMVMF@Michigan.org
http://www.themedc.org/MichiganVentureFund
http://www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureMatchFund


 

10 
 

• As provided in the Michigan Strategic Fund Act (“MSF ACT”), the applicants may request 
that “financial or proprietary information,” as defined in the MSF Act, contained within 
proposal submission materials be protected from disclosure under the Michigan FOIA.  Such 
information MUST be identified directly within the material submitted by applicants and 
comply with the following requirements: 
 

o Identify each component and portion of the narrative for which you are requesting 
confidentiality. Text, tables or graphics MUST be bolded and marked with asterisks and 
brackets (*[bold if text]*) within the narrative. 
 

o Identify the attachment and the portion of the document for which you are requesting 
confidentiality. Text, tables or graphics MUST be bolded and marked with asterisks and 
for portions of a multi-page document, such as the Business Plan, you MUST also list 
the page numbers of all pages that contain information marked by asterisks and bold 
brackets. 
 

• Applicants understand that by failing to properly identify information that the applicant desires to 
be designated as confidential by the MSF Fund Manager, the applicant waives all rights and 
actions against the MEDC, the MSF Board, and the State of Michigan and its participants, 
officers, agents and employees regarding the release of information that could have otherwise 
been acknowledged as confidential but for the applicant’s failure to properly designate the 
information as provided in this section or take other necessary action to have information 
acknowledged as confidential. It is the applicant’s sole responsibility to identify information that 
it desires to be designated as confidential. Neither the MSF Board nor MEDC shall be liable for 
any inadvertent disclosure of any of the applicant’s information designated as confidential by the 
applicant. 
 

• The MSF Fund Manager will determine and acknowledge information requested to be kept 
confidential on a case by case basis. 
 

V. REVIEW PROCESS 
 

• All applications will undergo a two-step evaluation process involving external review by an 
independent peer review expert and internal review by a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) 
appointed by the MSF Fund Manager. The JEC will make final recommendations for awards to 
the MSF Board.   

DECISIONS BY THE MSF ARE FINAL AND NOT SUBJECT TO APPEAL 

VI. APPLICATION FORMAT – BUSINESS PLAN 

Proposals must be in the form of a business plan, not to exceed 35 pages, utilizing ten (10) point font or 
greater, submitted as a single Portable Document Format (.pdf) file attachment.  Proposals in excess of 35 
pages will be disqualified.  This page limit does not include the cover page, required appendices for 
letters of collaboration and/or financial commitment(s) or policy on conflict management.  

Proposals may only be submitted electronically via email to the MEDC at VDF@Michigan.org. 
Proposals will not be accepted via U.S. mail or any other delivery method.  A non refundable 
application fee of $1,000 will be due upon notification from the MEDC. 

mailto:MVM@Michigan.org


 

11 
 

 

Applicants are asked to submit a business plan that should contain, at a minimum, the following items: 

 
A. Executive Summary 
 

1. Overview of venture fund and business plan 
 

2. Significance to Michigan 
 

B. Partnership Information 
 

1. Inception / History 
 

2. Funds organized to date along with respective vintage years and amounts of committed capital 
 

3. Organizational structure 
 

4. Descriptions of all entities associated / affiliated with the Partnership 
 

5. Detailed contact information for all office locations (address, telephone and fax) and key due 
diligence contact (e-mail, telephone and fax) 
 

C. Fund Raising Information 
 

1. Target / maximum amount of capital to be raised 
 

2. Expected date of initial and final close 
 

3. Prior funds’ schedule of LPs along with individual commitment amounts if applicable 
 

4. Preliminary indications of interest for the new fund (if applicable), with expected commitment 
amounts 
 

5. Investors not investing in new fund (if applicable) and reason(s) for non-participation 
 

6. Amount of capital drawn down for the prior fund (if applicable) along with estimated reserves for 
fees, expenses and future rounds of financing 
 

7. Briefly describe your policies to share/allocate investment opportunities between active fund(s) 
and the new fund to be raised 
 

D. Investment Focus 
 

1. Investment strategy / philosophy along with an in-depth discussion of the changes (if any) as 
compared to the prior fund (if applicable) 
 

2. Areas of focus across various dimensions including geography, sector and transaction type 
 

3. Competitive matrix showing the Firm’s competitive positioning against potential competitors  



 

12 
 

 
4. The Firm’s competitive advantages given the aforementioned strategy/areas of focus 

 
5. Any affiliations and/or partnerships with research institutions, universities, companies, etc. 

 
E. Investment Profile 
 

1. Investment plan as determined by number of investments, average investment size and 
investment pace during the investment period 
 

2. Target company profile 
 

o Size (revenues, enterprise value, total capitalization, etc) 
o Average equity investment 
o Target ownership stake 

 
3. Transaction structure / type  

 
4. Portfolio diversification across various dimensions including: 

o Geography 
o Sector and sub-sector 
o Company (i.e. maximum total investment – inclusive of add-on acquisitions / financing – 

per company) 
 

F. Investment Process 
 

1. Past deal flow log for the last five years (or less if applicable) along with statistics showing the 
number of deals undergoing preliminary screening, detailed due diligence and actual investments 
 

2. Expertise in sourcing and evaluating overall deal flow 
 

3. Discuss the investment decision-making process at each stage of deal flow (preliminary 
screening, detailed due diligence, final investment) 
 

4. Describe the composition of the investment committee and any change(s) from the prior fund(s) if 
applicable 

 
5. Post-investment activities to monitor and add value to investee companies: 

 
o Form and format of reporting required from portfolio companies for term of investment 
 
o    Establishing and monitoring achievement of milestones and actions contemplated when 

milestones are missed 
 

o Assistance to be provided to portfolio companies needing follow-on funding 
 

o Plans to protect the Fund’s ownership position in its portfolio companies 
 



 

13 
 

o Plans to assist portfolio companies with business, technology and management issues such as 
recruiting management team, introduction to partners or new customers, technology 
matchmaking activities, etc. 
 

G. Milestones and Timing 
 

1. Anticipated schedule of investing the bulk of the Award in portfolio companies 
 

2. Anticipated exit schedules 
 

3. Financial Objectives/Returns on investments 
 

H. Financial Plan 
 

1. Investment Forecast:  Provide a five year cash-flow forecast for all investible funds, indicating 
how the Fund will allocate these dollars to each portfolio company 
 

2. Five year Operating Budget for the Fund:  Provide a detailed five-year Operating Budget for the 
Fund.   
 

3. Personal Financial Plan:  Provide evidence that fund managers have the personal financial means 
to commit to employment with the fund over the life of the fund. 
 

I. Management Team 
 

1. Total number of full-time professionals employed by the GP, broken down into investment 
professionals, accounting and finance professionals, and miscellaneous support staff 
 

2. Breakdown of investment professionals by designation (Partner, Principal / Vice President, 
Associate, Analyst, etc)  
 

3. Detailed biographies of all investment professionals along with relevant biographical information  
4. Briefly describe any other professional responsibilities of management, including public funds, 

charitable activities, board responsibilities, etc. 
 

5. Turnover of senior professionals (Vice President and above) since inception including reasons for 
departure and other relevant information  
 

6. Describe the functional responsibilities of each investment professional along with approximate 
time allocation across various investment activities, including deal sourcing, structuring, 
execution, monitoring and exit management 
 

7. Discuss expected staffing levels  
 

8. Capital commitment by each professional 
 

9. Carried interest split among investment professionals and the vesting schedule, along with 
comparison to the prior fund(s) if applicable 
 



 

14 
 

10. Attribution of all previous investments (if applicable) for all professionals employed by the fund, 
where applicable (see Summary Attribution Table referenced below) 
 

11. Biographies of any fund advisors and/or mentors (if applicable) and approximate time and 
capacity working with the fund 
 

J. Track Record 
 

1. Historical investment track record in Excel showing: 
o Actual cash flows, by investment, for realized and unrealized investments 
o Actual LP cash flows (net of all expenses) for the prior fund(s) 

 
2. Please provide Transaction Summaries for all investments made to date including the following 

information: 
o Company name, location and business description 
o Investment thesis 
o Existing investors in the company along with the respective investment amounts 
o Composition of the Board of Directors 
o Recent company developments 
o Initiatives taken by the Firm to improve company performance 
o Company outlook, including key milestones, progress on financial / operating 

parameters, etc 
o Exit plan (prospects for IPO, interest from strategic players, anticipated time frame for 

liquidity, etc) or if realized, mode of exit along with description of the exit process 
 

3. Please provide the following financial information for all portfolio companies, both realized and 
unrealized, in Excel: 

o Relevant financial information – Revenues, EBITDA and Net Debt – historical (past 
three years), at the time of investment, most recent financial period as well as projected 
(at least three years) 

o Valuation multiples – Enterprise Value to Sales and Enterprise Value to EBITDA – at the 
time of investment as well as most recent financial period 

o Fully diluted ownership stake, both at the time of investment as well as current 
 

4. Valuation policy 
o For financial reporting purposes 
o If different than above, the methodology used for calculating returns in the track record 

 
5. Most recent quarterly and annual reports (including most recent audited financials) for each prior 

partnership 
 

6. Co-investments 
o Have you provided co-investment opportunities to your LPs in the past five years? 
o Have you syndicated excess investment capacity to other GPs? 
o How have your co-investments provided to LPs performed relative to other investments? 

 
K. Legal documents 
 

• Please provide electronic copies of the following: 
o Offering memorandum 



 

15 
 

o Partnership Agreement  
o Fund management and/or advisory agreements 
o Subscription Agreement 
o Legal/Tax opinion letter 
o All side-letters 

 
• Advisory Committee 

o Composition of the Committee  
o Criteria for selection of the members 
o Description of responsibilities 

 
L. References 
 

• Names and contact information (telephone and e-mail) for: 
o All portfolio company CEOs (including any replaced CEOs) 
o Former employees 
o All co-investors 
o All limited partners 
o Bankers and brokers 
o Law firms and auditors 

 
M. A policy on conflict management 
 
 
Reference:  Summary Attribution Table 
 
 

 
 
VII. GOVERNING BOARD AND ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAM 
 

The MSF Board is comprised of 11 members, including the Director of the Department of 
Licensing and Regulatory Affairs, the State Treasurer, the Chief Executive Officer of the MEDC 
and 8 additional members appointed by the Governor.  A current list of MSF Board members can 
be found at the following internet link, www.michiganadvantage.org. 
 
Under the 21st Century Jobs Fund initiative, the MSF Board sets the strategic direction for 
funding commercialization activity and authorizes funding decisions.  The MSF Board has 
designated the MEDC staff to provide administrative services for the programs that fall under the 
Board’s responsibilities. 
 
This program is subject to Michigan law.  In the event of any conflicts that proceed to court, 
jurisdiction will be in a Michigan court of law.  Nothing in this document shall be construed to 
limit the rights and remedies of the State of Michigan, the MSF Board, or the MEDC.  As 

Fund Company Description Location Industry Round(s) Origination Lead
Board 

Representation
Exit 

Involvement
Co-Investors

Portfolio Company 1
Portfolio Company 2
Portfolio Company 3
Portfolio Company 4
Portfolio Company 5
Portfolio Company 6
Portfolio Company 7

http://www.michiganadvantage.org/


 

16 
 

provided by Michigan law, the MSF Board retains complete discretion to accept or reject any 
proposal. In accordance with PA 215 and in concert with the Chief Compliance Officer of the 21st 
Century Jobs Fund, the MSF Board has established a comprehensive conflict of interest policy. 
 
Any award is subject to the availability of funds.  Applicants acknowledge that the MSF Board’s 
performance of its payment obligation is contingent upon the State Legislature’s continued 
approval of funding for the 21st Century Jobs Fund initiative. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[THIS SECTION LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK, SEE NEXT PAGE]



 

18 

Appendix A 

Legal Requirements 
 

A. Eligibility and Obligations 

To receive funding under this program, the applicant organization must be a Michigan based venture fund 
at the time of the award. Approved venture funds must invest into Michigan based companies, at 
minimum, an amount equal to the MSF investment into the venture fund.  

In addition, the Primary Contact must be located in Michigan for the duration of the project at the 
principal site at which, or from which, fund activities will be performed. If a Primary Contact relocates 
outside of Michigan during the award period, the recipient organization must identify an alternate Primary 
Contact who is located in Michigan or a Michigan-based collaborator to take over the direction of the 
award. An alternate Primary Contact is subject to the final written approval of the Portfolio Manager. If 
such arrangements are not feasible, the award will be rescinded. 

The award cannot be assigned or transferred without written authorization of both the MEDC Portfolio 
Manager and the MSF Fund Manager 

B. Collaboration 

Applicants, entities and/or collaborators that have received a previous award from the 21st Century Jobs 
Fund or the former Michigan Technology Tri-Corridor (“MTTC”) or Michigan Life Sciences Corridor 
(“MLSC”) programs are eligible for an award, however, funds that have received previous investments 
from the MSF or that MEDC which make up more than 20% of the fund size are not eligible to receive 
additional state funding under this program. Applicants, entities, and/or collaborators must identify if they 
have received previous awards under these programs. Progress of previously funded proposals, including 
the status of any outstanding grants, investments or loans, will be evaluated as part of the review process 

The 21st Century Jobs Fund sets high standards for collaboration and requires evidence of genuine, 
productive collaboration. Collaboration is encouraged and will be given preference, but is not required. 
All collaborators shall be identified in the designated area of the application. In general, collaborating 
entities should be Michigan-based, as one of the goals of the 21st Century Jobs Fund is to increase 
collaboration between or among Michigan for-profit companies and Michigan institutions of higher 
education, Michigan non-profit research  institutions, and Michigan non-profit corporations. Collaboration 
with non-Michigan-based entities may be permitted if the applicant can demonstrate that the collaborator: 
(i) provides access to specialized resources, scientific, technical, and commercial expertise that are not 
readily available in Michigan; and (ii) ultimately benefits Michigan in a manner consistent with the intent 
of the 21st Century Jobs Fund. 

C. Award Agreement 

The MSF, or MEDC staff on behalf of the MSF (provided that  there are no material changes to the 
budget approved by the  MSF), may adjust the proposed budget or term of the award based on input from 
the review process. The MSF may also choose to partially fund a project based upon the availability of 
funds. Post-award contract development, due diligence site visits, and financial and legal document 
submissions, among other things, may also require adjustments to proposed budgets. Program investment 
agreements will contain further information on the procedure for adjusting proposed budgets and 
milestones for the term of the award agreement. 



 

19 

MEDC staff will review contractual terms for the award agreement and structure an award-monitoring 
program. The successful applicant will be informed of the requirements for investment monitoring and 
progress reports. The investment agreement will contain reporting requirements as stipulated in Public 
Act 215 of 2005, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Entities that received funding, the amount received, and the type of funding 

• Valuation of the Company 

• The number of new patents, copyrights, or trademarks  applied for and issued to the Company 

• The number of new jobs created and new jobs projected by the Company 

• Amounts of other funds leveraged by the Company 

• Money or other revenues or property returned to the Company 

• The total number of new licensing agreements by institution and the number of new licensing  
agreements entered into by the Company 

• Products commercialized and revenues generated by the Company 

• State business taxes paid by the Company 

All award agreements approved by the MSF Fund Manager will contain a provision that the MSF, the 
MEDC, the Auditor General and the Chief Compliance Officer have access to the books and records, 
including financial records and all other information and data relevant to the terms of the investment 
agreement, related to the use of the investment. 

Prior to an investment being disbursed, the MEDC and the Office of the  Chief Compliance Officer will 
conduct due diligence on the awardee, including, but not limited to, criminal and civil background checks 
of the applicant, and review of the organizational documentation and financial information of the 
applicant. The background checks will include, but may not be limited to, affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, 
directors and managerial employees. To facilitate these background checks, applicants will be required to 
provide as part of the required due diligence the complete names, addresses, and birthdates of all persons 
who fall within the above definition. 

D. Required Disclosures and Conflicts of Interest 

All proposals shall include disclosure statements signed by the Primary Contact of the official proposal 
and by any other stakeholder(s) or collaborating entity involved in the activities being proposed. 

For as long as the application is pending and during the term of the investment agreement, if applicable, 
the disclosure statement must be updated any time a significant financial interest, as defined on the 
disclosure statement, arises. 

E. Breach of Contract 

A violation of any provision of the award agreement is grounds for any or all of the following, among 
other possible remedies:(i) rescission of  the award; (ii) termination of all related underlying contractual 
agreements in which the MSF Board or MEDC is a party; or (iii) repayment by the recipient (s) of the 
award or any portion thereof, actually disbursed, either directly or indirectly, to the recipient. 

If the MSF Board and/or the MSF Fund Manager has a reasonable belief that a breach of award 
agreement has occurred, the MSF Board or the MSF Fund Manager has the right to have the award 
recipient’s annual financial statements separately audited by an independent certified public accountant. If 



 

20 

the audit reveals that a breach has occurred, the award recipient shall reimburse the MSF for the fees and 
expenses incurred to perform the audit in addition to other remedies available to the MSF Board at law or 
equity. 

Naming a figurehead from Michigan as Primary Contact while the fund work is conducted by a non-
Michigan-based organization or is substantially performed in another state is not sufficient for eligibility 
and, if discovered after an award has been made, will result in the termination or rescission of the award 
and subject the award recipient to any other remedies available to the MSF Board at law or equity. In 
addition to the requirements contained in this document and as provided by law, the contracts and 
policies of the MSF Board may provide for additional rights and remedies. 

F. Notice of Proprietary Information Michigan Freedom of Information Act 

Except as otherwise provided in these guidelines, all information in an applicant’s proposal is subject to 
disclosure under Public Act No. 442 of 1976, known as the “Freedom of Information Act”. This act also 
provides for complete disclosure of contracts, their attachments, due diligence materials, progress reports 
submitted throughout the term of the award agreement and financial documents submitted as required 
under the award agreements. Proposal information is furnished to the MEDC, independent peer review 
experts and the State of Michigan, through the MSF Board. 

Proposal materials submitted by applicants may contain “financial or proprietary information”, which is 
defined as “information that has not been publicly disseminated or which is unavailable from other 
sources, the release of which might cause competitive harm”. Applicants are provided an opportunity to 
specifically designate such proprietary or financial information. 

Applicants must be aware that, pursuant to MCL 125.2005(9), information the applicant deems 
confidential must be acknowledged by the Michigan Strategic Fund (MSF) Board or delegated 
authority as confidential to protect such information from disclosure under the Michigan Freedom 
of Information Act, MCL 15.243(1)(d). Information that is not acknowledged as confidential by the 
MSF Board or delegated authority may be subject to disclosure under the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act. Unless considered proprietary in nature, routine financial information cannot be 
acknowledged as confidential. The MSF Fund Manager will make the final decision on whether 
information designated as confidential by the applicant will be acknowledged as confidential. 

Applicants agree that by failing to properly identify information that the applicant desires to be designated 
as confidential by the MSF  Board or delegated authority, the applicant waives all rights and actions 
against the MEDC, the MSF Board, and the State of Michigan and its participants, officers, agents and 
employees regarding the release of information that could have otherwise been acknowledged as 
confidential but for the applicant’s failure to properly designate the information as provided in this section 
or take other necessary action to have information acknowledged as confidential. It is the applicant’s sole 
responsibility to identify information that it desires to be designated as confidential. 

The MEDC, the MSF Board, and the State of Michigan and its participants, officers, agents and 
employees shall not be liable for any inadvertent disclosure of any of the applicant’s information 
designated as confidential by the applicant. 



 

21 

G. Submission Materials 

Applicants may request confidential treatment for “financial or proprietary information” contained within 
proposal submission materials that meets the definition of “financial or proprietary information contained 
in the MSF Act. Such information MUST be identified directly within the material submitted by 
applicants by the following requirements: 

Identify each component and portion of the narrative for which you are requesting confidentiality. Text, 
tables, or graphics MUST be bolded and marked with asterisks and brackets (*[bold if text]*) within 
the narrative. 

Identify the attachment and the portion of the document for which you are requesting confidentiality.  
Text, tables or graphics MUST be bolded and marked with   asterisks and brackets (*[bold if text]*) on 
the attachment. If you are requesting confidentiality for portions of a multi-page document, such as the 
Business Plan, you MUST also list the page numbers on all pages that contain information marked by 
asterisks and bold brackets. 

Proposals that fail to differentiate truly proprietary information from public information by 
indiscriminately labeling large sections or entire proposals as proprietary cannot be properly protected 
and will be returned to the applicant without review and may result in disqualification.  Watermarks, 
footers and headers that state “Confidential” or similar general indications will be construed to be 
an indiscriminate labeling of confidential information and will not be acknowledged. 

Abstract/Executive Summary 

The abstract or executive summary section required should not contain any confidential information. 
Applicants are advised that all information contained within the abstract or executive summary is subject 
to disclosure under the Michigan FOIA. By inserting confidential information in the abstract, applicants 
waive any and all rights and/or actions against the MEDC, the MSF Board and the State of Michigan for 
the release of information that otherwise would have been confidential information but for the applicant’s 
inclusion of the confidential information in the abstract. 

H. Review Process 

Names of review or interview panel members will not be available to applicants. Applicants and their 
representatives are NOT permitted to contact the peer review agency, reviewers, MSF Board members or 
the MSF Fund Manager regarding the applicant’s proposal. All communications regarding the proposal or 
review process should be conducted via the following email address: VDF@Michigan.org. Any attempt 
by an applicant to contact the above mentioned parties may result in proposal disqualification. 

By submitting a proposal, the applicant acknowledges that the decision to award an investment is subject 
to the sole discretion of the MSF. The MSF’s decision is final and is not subject to appeal. Any attempt 
by an applicant, collaborating entity, or other party of interest to the proposed fund to appeal and/or take 
any action, including, but not limited to, legal action, regarding the proposal or awards process in general 
may result in the applicant’s proposal being eliminated from award consideration. If the applicant has 
already received an award, the award(s) may be revoked at the discretion of the MSF Board or MSF Fund 
Manager. However, this paragraph should not be construed in a manner that would prevent an applicant 
from taking action, including legal, to protect any rights bestowed on the applicant in the actual award 
agreement negotiated with successful applicants. 

mailto:PMVMF@Michigan.org


 

22 

I. Due Diligence 

Prior to the disbursement of a the Program investment, the MEDC and the Office of the Chief 
Compliance Officer will conduct due diligence on the awardee, including, but not limited to, criminal and 
civil background checks of the applicant, and review of the applicant’s organizational documentation and 
financial information. The background checks will include, but not be limited to, affiliates, subsidiaries, 
officers, directors and managerial employees. To facilitate these background checks, applicants will be 
required to provide the complete names, addresses, and birthdates of all persons for whom a background 
check will be conducted prior to the execution of an award agreement. All items must be submitted by 
within two weeks of announcement of awards by the MSF. If due diligence items are not submitted 
within two weeks of announcement of awards, the MSF reserves the right to rescind the award. 

The following information will be required of the awardee. All items must be timely submitted and 
deemed satisfactory prior to the release of any award funds. 

Individuals and Entities 

Please immediately provide us the following information regarding your fund and business entity. 

Individuals:  First, Middle, and Last Name for: 

• Primary Contact 

• Each Company Officer 

• Each Company Director 

• Each Management Employee 

Entities (in addition to information on Individuals noted above): 

• Legal Entity Name, Entity Location, and State and/or Country of Incorporation for: 
• Applicant Business 
• Each Affiliate of Applicant Business 
• Each Subsidiary of Applicant Business 
• If the Applicant Business conducts business with foreign countries, please list such countries. 

Organization Registration: 

To receive payment from the State of Michigan, Public Act 533 of 2004 requires that awardees be 
registered in the State of Michigan Vendor/Payee System, and must authorize payments to be made via 
electronic funds transfer (EFT). No awards will be finalized nor payments authorized until the required 
registration and authorization is complete. 

If you have not registered with the State of Michigan, please initiate the process to do so. If you have 
already registered with the State of Michigan, please verify and update your information. If you have not 
authorized EFT payment, please initiate the process to do so. 

Access the Vendor/Payee System, Contracts and Payment Express at www.michigan.gov/cpexpress.  To 
speak with Vendor/Payee System staff for assistance, call (517) 373-6222. REGISTRATION MUST BE 
COMPLETE AND UPDATED IN ORDER TO RECEIVE PAYMENT. 

http://www.michigan.gov/cpexpress


 

23 

Due Diligence Financial and Legal Documents: 

Corporate Records, including but not limited to: 

• Articles of Incorporation/Organization and Bylaws/Operating Agreement of the Company, as 
amended to date 

• Certificate of Good Standing 

• A copy of the most current organizational chart available for the Company, including all entities 
or investments  in which the Company owns less than a 100% interest 

Other Documents: 

Copies of tax liens 
Description of all pending or threatened litigation and unsatisfied judgments 
Documents relating to any injunctions, consent decrees, or settlements to which the Company is a party 

Submit a Disclosure and Conflict of Interest Statement.  The Statement may be viewed by visiting 
www.michiganadvantage.org/PureMichiganVentureDevelopmentFund. 

List of all State of Michigan awards 
 

http://www.michiganadvantage.org/MichiganVentureFund


MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

RESOLUTION 2012- 
 

ALLOCATION FOR MICHIGAN VENTURE DEVELOPMENT FUND 

WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 established the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund 
initiative; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services for the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) for 21st Century Jobs Fund programs; 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for basic 
research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of products, processes 
and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies to create jobs within the 
State of Michigan;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board were transferred to the Michigan 
Strategic Fund (“MSF”), including those powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 125.2088k; 

WHEREAS, at its June 27, 2012 meeting, the MSF Board approved and authorized 
implementation of the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund program (“Venture Development 
Fund”); 

WHEREAS, as part of the 21st Century Jobs Trust fund initiative, and pursuant to MCL 
125.2088h(1), the Jobs for Michigan investment fund was created as a permanent fund authorized by the 
state constitution (“Investment Fund”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 125.2088h(3) and MCL 125.2088h(7), the MSF Board shall 
direct the investment and reinvestment of the Investment Fund as provided under Chapter 8A of the MSF 
Act (“Chapter 8A”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 125.2088h(5)(b) and (c), the Investment Fund consists of, among 
other things, return on investments, return on principal, payments made, or other money received by or 
payable to the MSF under agreements related to loans or investments by the MSF under Chapter 8A; 

WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends that the MSF fund the Venture Development Fund using 
$5,000,000 from the Investment Fund and that repayments to the MSF from awards authorized under the 
Venture Development Fund be returned to the Venture Development Fund for future use under the 
Venture Development Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the MSF Board desires to approve using $5,000,000 from the Investment Fund and 
that repayments to the MSF from awards authorized under the Venture Development Fund be returned to 
the Venture Development Fund for future use under the Venture Development Fund. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF hereby directs funding of the Venture 
Development Fund using $5,000,000 from the Investment Fund and that repayments to the MSF from 
awards authorized under the Venture Development Fund be returned to the Venture Development Fund 
for future use under the Venture Development Fund. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Recused 

Lansing, Michigan 
June 27, 2012 

 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

RESOLUTION 2012- 
 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
JOINT EVALUATION COMMITTEE, APPLICATION AND  

EVALUATION PROCESS AND SCORING CRITERIA 
 

 WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (the “Act”) established the 21st Century Jobs Trust 
Fund initiative; 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 
administrative services to the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”); 

WHEREAS, MCL 125.2088k created the Strategic Economic Investment and 
Commercialization Board (“SEIC Board”) for the purposes of awarding grants and loans for basic 
research, applied research, university technology transfer, and commercialization of products, processes 
and services to encourage the development of competitive edge technologies to create jobs within the 
State of Michigan; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 2010-8, the Governor ordered the SEIC Board 
abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC Board transferred to the MSF, including those 
powers, duties, and functions provided under MCL 125.2088k; 

WHEREAS, at its June 27, 2012 meeting, MSF Board approved the Pure Michigan Venture 
Development Fund (“Venture Development Fund”) and the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund 
Guidelines (“Venture Development Fund Guidelines”) to assist in the growth of the venture industry by 
increasing the number of viable venture funds, with the intent of increasing the number of venture 
investments in the State;  

WHEREAS, the MSF is required to establish a competitive process to award grants, as set forth 
in the Act;  

WHEREAS, the Act requires that applications be reviewed by a joint evaluation committee as 
determined by the MSF Board; 

WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends that the MSF engage Credit Suisse Asset Management 
LLC (“Credit Suisse”) to assist in the review of applications received in response to the Venture 
Development Fund;  

WHEREAS, under Section 125.2005(7) of the Act, the MSF Board may delegate to its president, 
vice-president, staff or others those functions and authority the MSF Board deems necessary or 
appropriate; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends and the MSF desires to delegate the authority to (1) 
negotiate final contract terms and execute contracts with Credit Suisse to assist in the review of proposals 
received under the Venture Development Fund; (2) appoint a JEC to review proposals and to make 
recommendations to the MSF Board for awards under the Venture Development Fund; and (3) to develop 
and approve the application and evaluation process under the Venture Development Fund, each in 
accordance with the program guidelines and the MSF Act, to be used by Credit Suisse and the JEC in 
reviewing applications and making award recommendations under the Venture Development Fund (the 
“Delegation of Authority”). 



  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the use of Credit Suisse 

to assist in the review of applications received under the Venture Development Fund; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the Delegation of Authority for the 
Venture Development Fund. 

Ayes:  

Nays:   

Recused:  

Lansing, Michigan 
June 27, 2012 
 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2012- 
 

APPROVAL OF THE DECISION DOCUMENT FOR THE  
PURE MICHIGAN VENTURE DEVELOPMENT FUND 

 
WHEREAS, Public Acts 215 and 225 of 2005 (collectively, the “Act”) established the 21st 

Century Jobs Trust Fund initiative; 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) provides 

administrative services for the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) for 21st Century Jobs Fund programs; 

 WHEREAS, on April 25, 2012, the MSF authorized the public notice of a public hearing to be 
held regarding the proposed Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund (“Venture Development Fund”); 

 WHEREAS, pursuant the public notice, a public hearing was held on May 9, 2012 as required by 
MCL 125.2088c(5), and the MSF Board offered the public an opportunity to present data, views, 
questions and arguments regarding the Venture Development Fund; 
 
 WHEREAS, the MSF has had an opportunity to consider the data, views, questions, and 
arguments regarding the proposed Venture Development Fund; 
 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2012, the MSF approved the Venture Development Fund; and 
 

WHEREAS, consistent with the requirements of MCL 125.2088c(5), the MSF Board desires to 
produce a final decision document which describes the basis for its decision approving the Venture 
Development Fund. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF Board approves the attached final 
Decision Document and authorizes the MSF Chairperson to sign it. 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays: 
 
 Recused: 
 
Lansing, Michigan 
June 27, 2012 
 
 
 



MSF Decision Document  
 
Issue 
Approval of the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund 
 
Background  
As provided for in MCL 125.2088k(2), the Strategic Economic Investment and Commercialization Board 
(“SEIC Board”) shall award grants and loans from the 21st Century Jobs Trust Fund to encourage 
competitive edge technologies to create jobs in the State of Michigan.  Pursuant to Executive Order 2010-
8 the Governor ordered the SEIC Board abolished and all powers, duties, and functions of the SEIC 
Board were transferred to the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”), including those powers and duties and 
functions provided under MCL 125.2088k. The MSF Board desires to allocate up to $5 million, disbursed 
over 2 to 3 years, to qualified venture funds. 
 
Public Hearing 
A public hearing was held on May 9, 2012 to allow interested persons the opportunity to express data, 
views, questions, and arguments regarding the proposed Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund. 
Twenty people attended the public hearing and one written comment was received. Comments at the 
public hearing centered on the size and structure of the awards and the eligibility criteria for qualifying 
venture funds.  Minutes of the public hearing were presented to the MSF Board at its June 27, 2012 
meeting. 
 
Decision 
At its June 27, 2012 meeting, the MSF Board considered the comments received at the public hearing, 
and agreed that there was a need for the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund.  On June 27, 2011, 
the MSF Board approved the Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund. 
 
 
 
 
Michael A. Finney, Chairperson 
Michigan Strategic Fund Board 
 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    June 27, 2012 
 
To:    MSF Board Members 
 
From:   George Zimmerman, Vice President, Travel Michigan 
 
Subject:   Official State of Michigan Travel Guide Recommendation 

Background 
At its March 28, 2012, meeting, the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) issued an Official State of 
Michigan Travel Guide Request for Proposal (“Travel Guide RFP”) and authorized the MSF Fund 
Manager to appoint a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) to review the proposals.  
 
There were three proposals received in response to the Travel Guide RFP. Responses to the RFP were 
evaluated based upon a two-step selection process. The first step was an evaluation of which bids 
satisfactorily met the requirements of the RFP. Bids were graded on three criteria for this purpose. The 
JEC determined that all three proposals met these criteria and were considered for evaluation in Step II. 
To be considered for Step II, each bidder must have submitted a complete proposal in response the the 
RFP using the format specified in the attached evaluation and scoring summary. The JEC evaluated all 
proposals and ranked the proposal received from Meredith Corporation for Midwest Living the highest 
among the three proposals. 
 
The Midwest Living proposal was very thorough and well laid-out. The overall design aspect and concepts 
clearly represent the Pure Michigan brand. It also includes exciting new ideas and opportunities. The 
database options and direct mail opportunities are a key element of this proposal. One of the options is the 
polybagging of the Travel Guide with Midwest Living magazine to over 650,000 consumers in target 
markets. In addition, Meredith Corporation, the parent of Midwest Living has 282 employees based in 
Michigan. Starting in 2013, the Travel Guide will be printed in Michigan. 
 
Recommendation 
The MEDC recommends that the MSF award and enter into a contract for the Travel Guide to Meredith 
Corporation for Midwest Living, for the period of approximately August 1, 2012 to July 31, 2015, with an 
initial amount of $1,598,500.00 and two one-year additional extensions. 



Applicant

Technical Proposal 1 Stated 
the full name, addres phone 
and fax number of the 
organization and, if 
applicable, the branch office 
or ther subordinate element 
that will perform, or asist in 
performing, the work 
hereunder. Indicated whether 
if operates an an individual 
partnership, or corporation; if 
as a corporation included the 
state in which it is 
incorporated. If appropriate, 
the proposal stated whether 
the organization is licensed to 
operate in the State of 
Michigan.

Technical Propsal 2 
Stated in succinct terms 
their understanding of 
the problems(s) 
presented in the RFP.

Technical Propsal 3 
Included a narrative 
summary description of 
the proposed effort and 
of the services(s) 
/product(s) that will be 
delivered.

Technical Propsal 4 
Provided a detailed 
research outline and 
timeline for accomplishing 
the work. Included a 
Project Evaluation Review 
Technique (PERT)-type 
display, time related, 
showing each event, task 
and decision point in the 
work plan

Technical Propsal 5 
Described the prior experience 
of the organization which they 
consider relevant to the 
successful accomplishment of 
the project defined in the RFP. 
Included sufficient detail to 
demonstrate the relevance of 
such experience. Proposal 
included a description of 
qualifying experience to include 
project descriptions, costs and 
starting and completing dates 
of projects successfully 
completed; also included the 
name, address and phone 
number of the responsible 
official of the client organization 
wh may be contacted.

Technical Propsal 6 Identified 
a project manager and staff 
assigned by name and title. 
Included biographies, 
experience and work team's 
qualifications for this initiative. 
Indicated staff turnover rates. 
Showed where the projec team 
will be physically located during 
the thime they will be engaged 
in the work. Indicated the 
amount of dedicated 
management time for the 
bidder's project manager and 
other key individuals.

Technical Propsal 7 Listed 
all subcontractors that will be 
engaged to accomplish the 
project described in the RFP; 
included firm name, address, 
contact person and complete 
description of work to be 
subcontracted. Included 
descriptive information 
concerning subcontractor's 
organization and abilities. 
Also, the information provided 
in response to #5, above, 
should include detailed 
information about each 
potential subcontractor. Score Avg

Hour Media 67 25 21 28 95 75 49 360 72
Midwest Living 96 25 25 41 140 92 39 458 91.6
Pitch Black 20 15 2 14 20 35 5 111 22.2

Joint Evaluation Committee Members
Robin Peebles
Angela Sharps
Kelly Wolgamott
Ken Yarsevich
George Zimmermann

Travel Guide RFP Doc-4269



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

2012- 
 

SELECTION OF VENDOR FOR OFFICIAL STATE OF MICHIGAN TRAVEL GUIDE 
 

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2012, the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) issued a Request for 
Proposals for the Official State of Michigan Travel Guide (“Travel Guide RFP”) and authorized the MSF 
Fund Manager to appoint a Joint Evaluation Committee (“JEC”) to review the proposals;  
 

WHEREAS, the JEC has evaluated all proposals and ranked the proposal by Meredith 
Corporation highest among all travel guide proposals;  
 

WHEREAS, the MSF designated the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”) 
to provide administrative services for the MSF;  
 

WHEREAS, the MEDC recommends and the MSF desires to select the firm Meredith 
Corporation as the vendor for the Official State of Michigan Travel Guide; and 

 
WHEREAS, the MSF also desires to make an initial allocation of $1,598,500 to fund the 

Official State of Michigan Travel Guide. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that, subject to State Administrative Board 
approval, the MSF Board approves the selection of Meredith Corporation as the vendor for the Official 
State of Michigan Travel Guide for an initial term of three years with the option to renew the contract for 
two additional one year terms at the sole discretion of the MSF Fund Manager;  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF authorizes an initial allocation of $1,598,500 for 

the Official State of Michigan Travel Guide; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board authorizes the MSF Fund Manager to negotiate 
final contract terms and to execute the Official State of Michigan Travel Guide contract on the MSF 
Board’s behalf so long as the final contract terms and conditions are not materially adverse to the interest 
of the MSF.  
 

Ayes:  
 
Nays:  
 
Recused:  
 

Lansing, Michigan  
June 27, 2012 
 



1 
 

 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 
THE DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

AND 
THE GOVERNOR’S LEGAL DIVISION, THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND, AND 

THE MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
This Memorandum of Understanding between the Department of Attorney General, and the 
Governor’s Legal Division, the Michigan Strategic Fund (MSF), and the Michigan Economic 
Development Corporation (MEDC), specifies the legal services to be provided by the 
Department of Attorney General related to Indian casino gaming , and the costs to be paid by the 
MSF, for those legal services.  These legal services will be provided to support efforts to 
preserve and enhance economic incentive payments from Indian casino gaming made pursuant to 
gaming compacts with the State of Michigan.  These payments - $51 million in 2011 - are 
currently paid to the MSF and the MEDC. 
 
Payments and Services:   
 
The Department of Attorney General will provide legal consultation and representation as 
required by the Governor’s Legal Division in matters involving Indian gaming referred to the 
Department of Attorney General by the Governor’s Legal Division.  These matters include 
enforcement of federal and state laws governing Indian gaming, enforcement of gaming 
compacts, negotiations relating to those compacts, and defense of litigation involving Indian 
gaming.  These services will be provided by the equivalent of 1.25 full-time attorneys and related 
support staff, on a priority basis, at an annual cost not to exceed $195,000, including salary, 
fringe benefit costs, computer and related equipment, and supplies.  The Department of Attorney 
General will provide quarterly billings for these services to the MSF and the MEDC and will be 
reimbursed by inter-agency transaction.  For the period from May 31, 2012 to September 30, 
2012 the annual cost will be prorated. 
 
The Department of the Attorney General agrees to provide the Governor’s Legal Division, the 
MSF and the MEDC with annual reports due on October 31, 2012 and 2013.  The annual report 
shall document the use of the funds and report the status of Indian gaming cases and issues 
referred to the Department of Attorney General by the Governor’s Legal Division.  Reports shall 
be submitted to: 



2 
 

 
David Murley     Jennifer Nelson 
Deputy Legal Counsel  Chief of Staff and General Counsel 
Governor’s Legal Division  Michigan Economic Development Corp. 
P.O. Box 30013   300 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48909   Lansing, MI 48913 
murleyd@michigan.gov  jennifer@michigan.org  
517-335-7864    517-241-1400 
 
Michael Pohnl 
MSF Fund Manager 
300 N. Washington Square 
Lansing, MI 48913 
pohnlm@michigan.org 
517-373-6567 
 

 
Amounts required for court reporters, expert witnesses, transcripts, travel, or other related items 
will be discussed as the need arises and appropriate arrangements made on a case-by-case basis.   
 
Assignments will be made through the Division Chief of the Environment, Natural Resources, 
and Agriculture Division and priorities determined by the Governor’s Legal Division in 
coordination with the Division Chief.  The attorney position will be physically housed in the 
Environment, Natural Resources, and Agriculture Division of the Department of Attorney 
General.   
 
Agreement Period:   
 
This agreement is in full force and effect for services rendered from May 31, 2012 to September 
30, 2013.  Either party may terminate this agreement by giving sixty (60) days written notice to 
the other party, stating the reasons for termination and its effective date.   
 
DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
 

By:         
 Carol L. Isaacs, Chief Deputy Attorney General 
Dated:         
 
 
By:         
 James Selleck, Director, Office of Fiscal Management 
Dated:         
 
 

mailto:murleyd@michigan.gov
mailto:jennifer@michigan.org
mailto:pohnlm@michigan.org


3 
 

GOVERNOR’S LEGAL DIVISION 
 

By:         
 David Murley, Deputy Legal Counsel 
Dated:         

 
 
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 
 By: __________________________________________ 
  Michael Pohnl, MSF Fund Manager 
 Dated: __________________________________________ 
 
 
MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 By:         
  Jennifer Nelson, Chief of Staff and General Counsel 
 Dated:         
 
 
S:\ENRA_Division_Administration\MOUs - IAAs\MOU-MSF 2012 2013.doc 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
 

RESOLUTION 2012- 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR LEGAL SERVICES  
RELATED TO TRIBAL GAMING MATTERS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) and the Michigan Economic Development 
Corporation (“MEDC”) receive economic development and incentive payments from tribal casino gaming 
pursuant to gaming compacts with the State of Michigan; 

 
WHEREAS, in order to support and preserve those economic development and incentive 

payments from tribal casino gaming to the MSF and the MEDC, the Department of Attorney General 
(“AG”) has agreed to provide legal services to the MSF and the MEDC related to tribal casino gaming; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, to that end, the AG, the Governor’s Legal Division (“Legal Division”), the MSF, 

and the MEDC desire to enter into the attached Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) to delineate the 
rights and responsibilities of the AG, the Legal Division, the MSF, and the MEDC with respect to legal 
services related to tribal casino gaming and the costs to be paid by the MSF for those legal services;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the MSF approves the attached MOU and 
authorizes the MSF Fund Manager to sign the MOU on behalf of the MSF.  
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays: 
 
 Recused: 
 
Lansing, Michigan 
June 27, 2012 
 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    June 27, 2012 
 
To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board Members 
 
From:  Deborah Stuart, CDBG Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Program 
  2012 Downtown Infrastructure Grant (DIG) Project 
 
Background: The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program announced a 
competitive round of CDBG funding in November 2011.  Eligible communities could submit 
Pre-Applications for Downtown Infrastructure Grants (DIG).  This was the second offering of 
the Downtown Infrastructure Grants since the program was introduced. 
 
The purpose of the DIG program is to assist low and moderate income communities seeking to 
improve the infrastructure quality of their downtown district.  The program is restricted to 
providing funding for public infrastructure improvements for low and moderate income 
communities in areas located in a traditional downtown.  Generally, a traditional downtown is 
defined as a grouping of 20 or more commercial parcels of property that include multi-story 
buildings of historical or architectural significance.  The area must have been zoned, planned or 
used for commercial development for 50 or more years.  Eligible infrastructure included such 
activities as:  streets and roads, sidewalks, parks, curbs, gutters, sewer, water, lighting, parking 
facilities, street furniture, landscaping and wayfinding signs.  In order to meet the CDBG 
requirements, the activities must benefit the entire low and moderate income community. 
 
The MSF received 48 Pre-Application forms requesting a total of $19,688,475, with a total of 
$6,168,976 in matching funds identified.  Shortly before the deadline for the Pre-Applications, 
we  program staff realized that  the projects in our Pipeline were moving faster than anticipated, 
and we needed to delay funding for this program until the MSF received an additional allocation 
of funding.  The communities were notified if they ranked high enough to be recommended for 
approval, and it was confirmed that their projects could be delayed until July 1, 2012.  The 
projects recommended have completed a full application and majority of their environmental 
review.  This allows them to start construction immediately following the grant agreement being 
signed.   
 
National Objective: In order to qualify for CBDG funding, populations of communities or 
program areas must be at least 51 percent low and moderate income as determined by census 
data provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development or an income survey.  
It has been determined that all of the recommended applicants meet this criterion.  
 



 

 

Eligible Activity: All of the projects being recommended involve eligible activities identified in 
Section 105(a)(2) of Title I of the  Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended. 
 
Screening Guidelines:  All of the projects being recommended demonstrated that they are 
located in a traditional downtown; the community provided a cash match of at least ten percent; 
the community had not received a 2010 DIG grant; the community did not apply for a 2011 Farm 
to Food grant; the community has a maintenance plan for the proposed projects; and the project 
is able to be completed within one year of the grant agreement sign date.   

 
Please note since we have changed the timeline of the availability of funds and the construction 
season will be half way complete prior to the projects being able to commence, we are allowing 
the communities to complete their projects within one and half years of the grant agreement sign 
date.  This will allow them to have an entire construction season, and the recommended 
applicants have confirmed they can complete their projects within that timeframe.     

 
The projects being recommended were scored and given priority based on the community 
providing matching funds above ten percent; the community not having any open grants that 
have not been drawn down; the project being located in a DDA, or PSD/BID/BIZ, or similar; and 
the incorporation of innovative design elements.  
 
Recommendation: A list of the eight recommended projects is attached as Exhibit A to the 
resolution and totals $3,340,614.  The list includes the CBDG applicants, project description, 
percentage of low and moderate income people living in the community, amount requested, 
match commitment, the score they received, and a description of the proposed project.   Staff 
recommends that grant agreements totaling $3,340,614 be authorized for the eight projects listed 
in Exhibit A of the resolution.  Grant agreements will be signed after July 1, 2012, and will be 
contingent on funding from HUD for the 2012 Program Year.  
 
 
 
  
 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 

RESOLUTION 2012- 

FALL 2012 DOWNTOWN INFRASTRUCTURE GRANTS (DIG) 

WHEREAS, Executive Order 1999-1, issued pursuant to Article V of the Michigan Constitution of 1963 
and the laws of the State of Michigan, consolidated the State’s economic development functions and programs 
and their accompanying powers in the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”); 

WHEREAS, Executive Order 1999-1 transferred from the Michigan Jobs Commission to the MSF all 
authority, powers, duties, functions, grants, and responsibilities, including the functions of budgeting, 
procurement, personnel, and management related functions, of the Community Development Block Grant 
(“CDBG”) program; 

WHEREAS, the CDBG program has policies, criteria, and parameters which are enumerated in the 2012 
Program Guidelines (the “Criteria”).  Included in those Criteria are guidelines for Downtown Infrastructure 
Capacity Enhancement competitive grants which the MSF authorized with Resolution 2012-028 approving the 
Consolidated Plan; 

WHEREAS, the recommended communities listed in Exhibit A (the “Communities”) have submitted 
individual applications requesting funding to be used to improve the infrastructure quality in their downtown 
districts (the "Projects") for approval; 

WHEREAS, CDBG program staff reviewed the applications and proposed Projects in light of the 
Criteria and concluded the Projects are eligible for funding, are not speculative in nature, are economically sound, 
are ready to proceed, and at least 51 percent of the project beneficiaries are low and moderate income persons; 
and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends that separate grant agreement be authorized and entered into with the 
Communities for funds from the CDBG program for the reasons set forth in this Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the MSF Board authorizes separate grant agreement be 
entered into with each community not to exceed the respective amounts listed in Exhibit A for the payment or 
reimbursement of costs associated with the Projects.  The MSF allocates funds from the Michigan CDBG 
program for the purpose of funding the Communities’ proposed Projects contingent upon the MSF’s continued 
receipt of CDBG funds and availability of adequate funds; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, staff is directed to negotiate the terms of a grant agreement for each 
Project.  The Fund Manager or MSF President is authorized to execute, on behalf of the MSF, all documentation 
necessary to effectuate the proposed projects; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, if a community fails to execute and return a grant agreement to 
staffwithin 90 days of the date this Resolution is adopted, then as to that specific community only this Resolution 
shall be of no further force and effect and shall be void.  Based upon a showing of good cause, staff may extend 
the time period for executing and returning a grant agreement for an additional 30 day period. 

Ayes:  

Nays: 

Recused: 

Lansing, Michigan 
June 27, 2012 

 

 



Exhibit A  
Downtown Infrastructure Grants  
Recommended Projects  
Program Year 2012 
 

Applicant Project Description Percent 
Low/Mod CDBG Request Total Match  

City of Albion Streetscape (includes Charging Stations for 
Electrical Cars and Speaker System)  55.8  $                      470,000.00   $               105,000.00  

City of Boyne City Water and Sewer Replacement, Streetscape 
Improvements 68.1  $                      503,440.00   $               215,760.00  

City of Ishpeming Gateway Enhancement (includes Rain 
Gardens) and Streetscape Improvements  61.8  $                      399,043.00   $               300,000.00  

City of Ithaca Parking Lot and Alleyway Improvements  51  $                      178,209.00   $                 40,000.00  

City of Manistique Water and Sewer Replacement 56.6  $                      231,170.00   $               140,000.00  

City of Mt. Pleasant Parking Lot Improvements  58.6  $                      583,000.00   $               287,000.00  

City of Norway Park Enhancements (includes Water and 
Electrical) and Alleyway Improvements 56  $                      225,752.00   $                 60,000.00  

City of Three Rivers Decorative LED Streetlights and Streetscape 
Improvements 52.6  $                      750,000.00   $               190,000.00  

Total   $                  3,340,614.00   $           1,337,760.00  

 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    June 27, 2012 
 
To:  Michigan Strategic Fund Board Members 
 
From:  Deborah Stuart, CDBG Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Program 
  2012 Application Guide 
 
Program Background:  
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) allocates Community Development 
Block Grant (“CDBG”) funding to the State of Michigan, through the Michigan Strategic Fund, for 
further distribution to eligible Units of General Local Government to carry out State approved activities.    
 
The State’s responsibilities include ensuring the State’s and their Grantee’s compliance with the statute, HUD 
regulations, and the Consolidated Plan.    On March 28, 2012, the Michigan Strategic Fund approved the 2012 
Consolidated Plan for the CDBG Program.  The attached documented is the Application Guide for potential 
applicants based on the requirements within the Consolidated Plan, Federal regulations and policies developed 
by staff to ensure consistency with grantees.   This document has been significantly updated from the last 
guidance that was implemented in 2009.  These updates are based on conversations with grantees and internal 
staff that work with the program.  In the future, the MSF will approve this document annually, to ensure that it 
is up to date with the changes to the Consolidated Plan and improvements to the program’s process.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends MSF approval of the attached Application Guide and Policies for Program Year 2012.    
 
 
 
  
 



MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND 
RESOLUTION 2012- 

APPROVAL OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 2012 APPLICATION 
GUIDE 

WHEREAS, Executive Order 1999-1, issued pursuant to Article V of the Michigan Constitution 
of 1963 and the laws of the State of Michigan, consolidated the State’s economic development functions 
and programs and their accompanying powers in the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”); 

WHEREAS, Executive Order 1999-1 transferred from the Michigan Jobs Commission to the 
MSF all authority, powers, duties, functions, grants, and responsibilities, including the functions of 
budgeting, procurement, personnel, and management related functions, of the Community Development 
Block Grant (“CDBG”) program; 

WHEREAS, the CDBG program desires to adopt the policies, criteria, and parameters which are 
enumerated in the attached 2012 Application Guide (the “Guide”); 

WHEREAS, CDBG program staff reviewed the Guide and concluded that the policies meet the 
enabling legislation,  federal regulations,  and the requirements of the Consolidated Plan which the MSF 
authorized with Resolution 2012-028; and 

WHEREAS, CDBG program staff recommends that the MSF adopt the attached Guide to 
update the current Application Guide adopted in 2009 and to ensure consistency in the CDBG program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  that the MSF Board adopts the attached Guide as 
the policies, criteria, and parameters for projects being considered and funded with 2012 Program Year 
funds; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the MSF Board authorizes the Fund Manager to make 
minor modifications to the document, if needed, and to take any action necessary to effectuate the terms 
of this Resolution. 

Ayes:  

Nays: 

Recused: 

Lansing, Michigan 
June 27, 2012 

 

 



 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM 

 

 

 

Application Guide 
For eligible activities administered by the Michigan Strategic Fund (MSF)                                                       

with the assistance of the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This Application Guide may be accessed at:  www.michiganadvantage.org/CDBG.  The electronic version 
on the website is the most recent version, and is the only official version, of the document.  Revisions are 
made periodically.  If the user is consulting a version date differing from the version date of the official 

version on the website, then changes have been made and you should only reference the official version.  
 

  
 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 2 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Table of Contents ..................................................................................................................................... 2 
 
Overview of General Requirements 

Eligible Applicants................................................................................................................................ 3 
Ineligible Applicants ............................................................................................................................. 3 
National Objective Requirements ........................................................................................................ 4 

LMI Area Benefit ............................................................................................................................... 4 
LMI Position Creation ....................................................................................................................... 4 
Blight Elimination  ............................................................................................................................. 5 
Urgent Need ..................................................................................................................................... 5 

Anti-Pirating of Jobs ............................................................................................................................ 5 
Eligible Activities. ................................................................................................................................. 6 

Contingency...................................................................................................................................... 6 
CDBG Administrative Costs ............................................................................................................. 6 

Funding Cycle, Proposal Review, and Project Limitations .................................................................. 7 
Screening Guidelines and Selection Criteria ....................................................................................... 8 

Cost Per Position .............................................................................................................................. 8 
Economic Development Underwriting (Financial Viability) ............................................................... 8 
Background Checks ......................................................................................................................... 9 
Excluded Parties List ........................................................................................................................ 9 
Development Agreements .............................................................................................................. 10 

Maximum Project Period ................................................................................................................... 10 
Environmental Review .................................................................................................................... 10 
Davis-Bacon Act ............................................................................................................................. 11 
Reporting Requirements ................................................................................................................ 11 
Overview of Requirements Related to Incurring Costs .................................................................. 11 
 

Economic Development Program Specific Requirements 
Direct Assistance to Business ........................................................................................................... 14 
Infrastructure- Business Development .............................................................................................. 16 
Revolving Loan Funds and Regional Revolving Loan Funds ........................................................... 18 
Unique Business Development Grants ............................................................................................. 20 

 
Downtown Development Program Specific Requirements 

Infrastructure- Downtown Development ............................................................................................ 21 
Façade Improvements ....................................................................................................................... 22 
Signature Building.............................................................................................................................. 23 
Unique Downtown Development Grants ........................................................................................... 25 

 
Planning Program Specific Requirements 

Economic Development Planning ...................................................................................................... 26 
Downtown Planning ........................................................................................................................... 26 

 
Blight Program Specific Requirements 
       Blight Elimination ............................................................................................................................... 28 
 
Infrastructure (Area Benefit) Program Specific Requirements 

Downtown Infrastructure Grants ........................................................................................................ 29 
Infrastructure Capacity Enhancement ............................................................................................... 30 
 
 
 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 3 
 

 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) allocates Community Development 
Block Grant (“CDBG”) funding to the State of Michigan, through the Michigan Strategic Fund (“MSF”) 
with assistance from the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (“MEDC”), for further 
distribution to eligible Units of General Local Government (“UGLGs”) to carry out MSF approved 
activities.  The federal statutory authority for the CDBG program is the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974, as amended ("HCDA"). 
 
Eligible Applicants 

Small cities, townships, and villages of less than 50,000 in population, and non-urban counties generally 
are eligible to apply for grants under the MSF CDBG Program. There are over 1,600 eligible general-
purpose, local governments, and these governments are referred to as “non-entitlement jurisdictions”. 

Ineligible Applicants 

The following counties and their respective units of local governments are not eligible to directly apply 
or directly receive MSF CDBG funds, unless they can provide documentation that they have opted out of 
their direct HUD allocation and were accounted for in the MSF’s PY 2012 formula allocation: 

• Genesee County (Except for the Cities of Clio, Davison, Flushing and Lennon) 
• Kent County 
• Macomb County 
• Oakland County (Except for the Townships of Novi and Southfield) 
• Wayne County 
• Washtenaw County and the following units of government within the county are not eligible for 

Michigan CDBG funds: 
o Ann Arbor City  
o Ann Arbor Township  
o Bridgewater Township  
o Northfield Township  

o Pittsfield Township  
o Scio Township  
o Salem Township  
o Superior Township 

o York Township 
o Ypsilanti City 
o Ypsilanti Township 

 
The following Michigan cities are not eligible to directly apply or directly receive Michigan CDBG funds: 

• Battle Creek  
• Bay City  
• Benton Harbor  
• East Lansing  
• Holland  

• Jackson  
• Kalamazoo  
• Lansing  
• Midland  
• Monroe  

• Muskegon  
• Muskegon 

Heights 
• Niles 
• Norton Shores 

• Portage 
• Port Huron 
• Saginaw 

Indian tribes eligible for assistance under Section 107(a)(7) of the HCDA are not eligible to directly apply 
for or directly receive MSF CDBG funds, but an eligible county or township may apply for MSF CDBG 
funds for projects located on Indian reservations if the unit of general local government has the legal 
authority to fund such projects on Indian reservations and Indian preference is not provided. 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 4 
 

National Objective Requirements  

Under the MSF CDBG Program, all projects must meet one of the following national objectives and the 
attending statutorily mandated requirements to be considered for funding:  

• The activities will benefit persons of low and moderate income(LMI), as defined by Section 
104(b)(3) of the Housing and Community Development Act and 24 CFR 570.483; 

• The activities will aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight, as defined by 24 CFR 
570.483; or 

• The activities are designed to meet other community development needs having a particular 
urgency because existing conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or 
welfare of the community which are of recent origin or which recently became urgent, where 
the community is unable to finance the activity on its own and where other financial resources 
are not available to meet such needs, as defined by 24 CFR 570.483. 

LMI area benefit projects must provide benefit to the entire unit of general local government identified 
as LMI Communities, where over 51 percent of the residents are low and moderate income persons, by 
HUD or through local survey efforts as approved by MSF. 

LMI position creation projects must result in position creation or retention where at least 51 percent of 
the positions are made available to, or held by, LMI persons.   Very low, low, and moderate-income 
limits are defined each year by HUD, and identify household income levels by household size. Typically 
the moderate-income level is 80 percent of the county median family income and is based on the 
income level of the household and not the individual filling the position. For position creation projects, 
the very low, low, and moderate-income requirement is applied at the time of hire.    

For position retention, the eligibility requirement is applied at the time of application for CDBG funds. In 
unique instances of position retention, the eligibility requirement may apply to a portion of the positions 
that are anticipated to turnover, for which the position requirement would be applied at the time of the 
new person being hired.  Turnover cannot account for more than 10% of the position retention 
requirement. To consider positions retained as a result of CDBG assistance there must be “clear and 
objective” evidence that positions will be lost: 

• Evidence that the business has issued a notice to affected employees or made a public 
announcement to that effect, or 

• Analysis of relevant financial records which clearly and convincingly show that the business is 
likely to have to cut back employment in the near future without the planned intervention.  

 
For both position retention and position creation, the business must also provide a hiring plan which 
details the number of positions to be created, the number of positions held or to be filled by LMI 
persons, the type of position, average wage, any special skills or training required, the timetable for 
hiring, and whether or not health care will be provided for the position. The plan must indicate who will 
be responsible for hiring and collecting required data. 

 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 5 
 

Positions are defined as full-time and full-time equivalent (FTE) permanent positions, which do not 
include construction positions, temporary positions, or layoff recalls.  HUD defines a FTE position as one 
that has 2080 hours of paid employment or is paid for 40 hours a week. Seasonal positions may be 
considered to be permanent only if the season is long enough for the position to be considered as the 
employees' principal occupation. Only those positions, which are created, or retained, within the grant 
project period, will be considered in meeting the national objective and screening guidelines. The MSF 
will make a final determination of the actual number of positions created, or retained, and the actual 
number of positions available to, or held by very low, low, or moderate-income people at the time the 
project is officially closed out by the MSF and will be based on documentation provided by the local 
government grant recipient. 
 
Blight elimination projects must provide certification from a Licensed Building Inspector that the project 
site meets the definition of blight as defined in the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act 381 of 
1996, MCL 125.2652 (e)(i-iv) and (vii), the reasoning for that determination, and how the proposed 
project will eliminate the blight causing elements.  

Urgent need projects are generally not supported by the MSF.  

All grantees will be required to comply with all current and newly adopted reporting requirements, 
including all items necessary to meet Integrated Disbursement and Information System (IDIS) project 
needed to justify compliance with the national objective requirements.  

“Anti-Pirating” of Jobs 

Section 588 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 prohibits States and local 
governments from using CDBG funds for employment relocation activities or “job pirating”.   Job pirating 
refers to the use of federal funds to lure or attract a business and its positions from one community to 
another community. CDBG funds may not be used to assist for-profit businesses, including expansions, 
as well as infrastructure improvement projects or business incubators which are designed to facilitate 
business relocation IF: 
 

• The funding will be used to assist directly in the relocation of a plant, facility or operation; and 
• The relocation is likely to result in a significant loss of jobs in the labor market area from which 

the relocation occurs. 
 
The following are definitions that will assist in determining if a business location falls under these 
provisions: 
 

Labor Market Area (LMA): An economically integrated geographic area within which individuals can 
live and find employment within a reasonable distance or can readily change employment without 
changing their place of residence. 

 
Operation: A business operation includes, but is not limited to, any equipment, employment 
opportunity, production capacity or product line of the business. 

 
 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 6 
 

 
 
Significant Loss of Jobs: A loss of jobs is significant if 
• The number of jobs to be lost in the LMA in which the affected business is currently located is 

equal to or greater than one-tenth of one percent of the total number of persons in the labor 
force of that LMA; OR in all cases 

• The loss of jobs is 500 or more. 
 

A job is considered to be lost due to the provision of CDBG assistance if the position is relocated 
within three years of the provision of assistance to the business. Notwithstanding the above 
definition, a loss of 25 positions or fewer does not constitute a significant loss of positions. 

 
Before directly assisting a business with CDBG funds, in the form of a grant to the UGLG, the MSF shall 
obtain a written certification from the assisted business. The certification shall include: 
 

• A statement from the assisted business as to whether the assisted activity will result in the 
relocation of any industrial or commercial plant, facility, or operation from one LMA to another, 
and, if so, the number of jobs that will be relocated from each LMA. 

• If the assistance will not result in a relocation covered by this section, a certification from the 
assisted business that neither it, nor any of its subsidiaries, has plans to relocate jobs at the time 
the grant agreement is signed with the UGLG that would result in a significant job loss as defined 
in this rule; and 

• The grant agreement with the UGLG shall provide for reimbursement of any assistance provided 
to, or expanded on behalf of, the business in the event that assistance results in a relocation 
prohibited under this section. 
 

Eligible Activities 

Activities cited in Section 105(a) of Title I of the HCDA are eligible for assistance.  The MSF has the 
following policies regarding these specific eligible activities:  

Contingency: Funds providing for contingencies must be related to construction activities.  A 
contingency must be identified in the specific budget line item for which it is intended and must be 
reasonable in amount (no more than 20%).  
 
CDBG Administrative Costs: CDBG funds may not be used to reimburse costs of preparing grant 
applications.  CDBG funds may be available to assist grantees with the cost associated with the 
management of their CDBG Grant Agreement.  The community must be able to document that it has 
sufficient management abilities and skills to meet the program requirements. 
 
CDBG funded administrative costs should not exceed two percent of the CDBG project activity costs, 
excluding administrative costs and engineering costs, with a $10,000 maximum. In the case of a 
complicated project or small project scope or other extenuating circumstances, the MSF will 
consider allowing up to five percent of the CDBG-funded project activity costs (excluding 
administrative and engineering costs). A written request must be submitted to with the application 
documents justifying the need for the additional administrative costs. In the case of Revolving Loan 
Funds (RLF), administrative costs should not exceed 18% of the program income they receive that 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 7 
 

Program Year. For RLFs, all funds generated from CDBG funded activities are considered program 
income.  

 
All reimbursement requests for CDBG funded administrative costs, that involve a third party, must 
be procured and the contract must outline the specific activities that will be performed and the 
justification for the costs. Local or other funds must be used for additional administrative costs. 
CDBG funds may not be used to administer other federal or state grant programs which may be 
conducted in conjunction with a CDBG project. 

 
Federal regulations do not allow CDBG funds to be used to supplant funds otherwise available to 
UGLGs. Typically, local governments that administer their own grants, provide the administration as 
in-kind leveraging (above the required local cash match). However, local governments that wish to 
charge costs or an employee’s time for administration of the CDBG project to the CDBG budget must 
first submit a certification that the use of federal grant funds for a portion of the employee’s salary 
will not supplant available local funds.  Depending on the circumstance, the MSF may require a 
contract between the employee and the UGLG for the additional time dedicated to the grant 
administration, in addition to their regular hours.   
 
Any costs and time funded by CDBG or CDBG funded Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program Income 
must be documented through the appropriate means (i.e., invoices from local newspapers for 
advertisements placed for hearings, postage, time sheets indicating work performed for the 
particular project, etc.). The documentation must be kept on file, and will be reviewed when 
requesting payment or during the monitoring visit.  
 

Please refer to Program Specific Requirements for eligible detail for other activities.  Please note that 
the MSF will not administer activities and projects related to eligible housing and neighborhood 
projects, as those projects are administered through the Michigan State Housing Development 
Authority.   

Funding Cycle, Proposal Review, and Project Limitations 

Proposals are considered on a continuous basis and applications for economic development, downtown 
development, planning, and blight elimination projects will be accepted following approval of the 
application. The application is a form submitted by a UGLG providing basic information on the proposed 
project, project activities, and a summary of the project budget including grant funds being requested 
and other funds supporting the proposed project. Grants will be awarded as funding availability allows. 

Applications for competitive infrastructure allocations will be preceded with announcements to 
potential applicants, which will identify specific selection criteria that are outlined in the Action Plan. 
The competition will be publicly announced and potential grantees will be notified. Approved projects 
will include only those activities identified in the Action Plan and will be awarded as funding availability 
allows, as determined in the sole discretion of the MSF. 

The MSF reserves the right to prescribe revisions in project proposals if activities prove to be CDBG 
ineligible, do not address program initiatives, or are not necessary project components; if proposed 
project costs are determined to be unacceptable, e.g., costs exceed CDBG requirements; or if there is 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 8 
 

not enough funding available to fully fund the request.  Additionally, projects should not be submitted 
for consideration if there is local controversy regarding the activities or proposed outcomes. 
 
If it is determined that the proposed project has adequately met the screening guidelines, selection 
criteria, and there is available funding, the local government will be authorized to execute a grant or 
loan agreement. A conditional grant award or commitment may be issued in the event there is a delay in 
receiving the state’s allocation from HUD. 

Screening Guidelines and Selection Criteria 

In considering project funding, a system based on screening guidelines and selection criteria is used to 
evaluate and invite applications and approve funding. The screening guidelines are considered to be 
thresholds that must be met or exceeded for a particular project to receive funding. If these thresholds 
are met by a proposed project, a positive funding decision may be made depending on the availability of 
funds, quality of positions, project sustainability and compliance with all other program requirements. 
The selection criteria are used to weigh the viable aspects of projects when a competitive award is to be 
determined.  NOTE:  Administration and compliance of current and previous grant awards will be 
considered during funding evaluation to establish capacity of the grantee.  

Communities identified as LMI Communities by HUD, or through local survey efforts as approved by the 
MSF, may choose to request consideration for the elimination of a singular screening guideline 
requirement in their efforts to qualify for a project. The elimination of the cost per position criteria is 
not eligible for this special consideration. 

 Cost Per Position: The total “CDBG cost per position” is then calculated by dividing: 
• The total dollar amount of CDBG funds to be spent for the activity (including administrative 

costs), by 
• The total number of positions to be created or retained as a result of each 

facility/improvements by all of the businesses for which the project is principally being 
undertaken. 
 

Economic Development Underwriting (Financial Viability): The CDBG regulations contain 
Guidelines and Objectives for Evaluating Project Costs and Financial Requirements. The MSF shall 
consider the guidelines provided as an appendix to the CDBG regulations at 24 CFR Part 570 for 
basic financial underwriting of projects being considered for all businesses that will receive funding 
under economic development. The level to which the guidelines will be implemented is project and 
circumstance specific.  Note that these guidelines only apply to projects that assist a private 
business entity. There are six criteria: 

1. Project Costs are Reasonable: A breakdown of all costs associated with the project (including 
working capital requirements) will be evaluated to determine the reasonableness of each cost.  
Applicants can assist in this review in the following ways: 

 
• Receive project quotes from independent, third parties 
• Receive multiple estimates for a project, typically three  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 9 
 

• Look at costs of comparable projects 
• Use guaranteed contracts, performance bonds or letters of credit 
 
Note: Businesses that are selecting their own contractors will be required to show costs are 
reasonable either by documenting project quotes from independent, third parties or providing 
multiple estimates for the project activities.  
 

2. Sources Are Committed: The business should verify that sufficient sources of funds have been 
identified to finance the project (including debt and equity). To fulfill this requirement, the MSF 
requires a written verification affirming the various funding parties' intentions to make funds 
available, and, depending on the nature of the funding party, a showing of their capacity to 
actually provide such funds.   

 
3. CDBG Funds Are Not Substituted for Non-Federal Funds:  In general, the recipient should clearly 

establish that there is a need for the investment of public resources. This is typically done by 
identifying that total funding for the project has a financing gap or a rate of return gap. The level 
of analysis will vary with the nature and complexity of the project.   

 
4. Financial Feasibility: The public benefit expected from the investment of CDBG funds is the 

creation and maintenance of LMI positions.  That benefit will not materialize if the project is not 
financially feasible. The financial viability can be evaluated based on assumptions about the 
project’s market share, sales levels, growth potential, revenue projections, project expenses, 
and debt service to determine if the project will at least break even.  

 
5. Owner’s Equity Return is Not Unreasonably High: CDBG should not provide more than a 

reasonable return on investment to an owner, given industry rates of return, local conditions, 
and the risk of the project.  

 
6. CDBG Funds Disbursed Pro Rata: As a general rule, CDBG funds should be disbursed proportional 

to the percentage of the project they fund.  CDBG money should not be the first money into a 
project, but rather should flow into a project in proportion to other project funding sources. For 
example, if CDBG funds are 20 percent of the project, CDBG funds should not exceed 20 percent 
of the aggregate proceeds disbursed.  Exceptions may be made if funds are allocated for 
acquisition that must occur first or that funds must be dispersed pro rata for the required cash 
match of an infrastructure project, but not for the required private investment rate. 

 
Background Checks: The MSF has established requirements to ensure that funds awarded are not 
provided to any person that has been convicted of a criminal offense or held liable in civil 
proceedings that negatively reflects on the business integrity of the person based on a finding of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, receiving stolen 
property, or violation of state or federal antitrust statutes, or as otherwise required by law.  Any 
businesses or individuals benefitting from CDBG funds will be subject to the same policy and 
procedure that the MSF has designated for the 21st Century Positions Trust Fund programs.  

Excluded Parties List and HUD’s Limited Denials of Participation List:  Before a project is 
recommended to the MSF, it will be verified that any business benefiting from the project is not on 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 10 
 

these federal lists.  Any contractors or consultants associated with the project, after the signing of 
the grant agreement, will also be verified as they are selected.  

Development Agreements:  The MSF will require Development Agreements between the UGLG and 
business prior to approval, if the project involves high risk that may result in repayment or project 
failure.  Generally, position creation projects that exceed $500,000 for an individual business will be 
considered high risk.   UGLGs must consider obtaining security (in the form of liens, guarantees, 
mortgages, etc.) for the performance of obligations in any high risk project, and must maintain 
appropriate levels of security, if obtained.  UGLGs must ensure that businesses are aware that the 
development agreement obliges both the UGLG and the business to grant terms and conditions, 
including but not limited to position creation or retention requirements.  The MSF is not a party to 
the development agreement between the UGLG and business.   

Maximum Project Period 

Projects must usually be completed within twenty-four (24) months from the date the funding is 
awarded. Funds not disbursed within the specified time limit may be recaptured by the appropriate 
State administering agency for reallocation to eligible CDBG projects.  All grant agreements will 
incorporate timelines to assure the project is on track to have successful completion within the grant 
term.  

The MSF may make exceptions to grant/loan amount limits and project periods based on the 
significance of the project’s impact on the community and the economy, the number of positions 
created, the needs of the community, level of benefits to LMI people and other considerations 
permitted under federal law. Exceptions will be considered as part of the funding decision and will be 
considered by the MSF on a case by case and circumstance by circumstance basis. 

Applicants, benefited businesses, and contractors must be aware at the outset of the existence of the 
federal statutes and regulations that have scheduling, cost, and substantial paperwork implications 
when CDBG funding is used for projects.  Businesses must be prepared to accept delays and other 
requirements and should not harbor unrealistic expectations about the speed with which a project may 
develop.  The following listing is by no means comprehensive, but applicants should be aware that the 
average due diligence time prior to MSF consideration ranges from three to six months.   This list simply 
highlights three areas that are commonly applicable:  
 

Environmental Review:  Federal statutes (the National Environmental Policy Act and HCDA) and 
HUD implementing regulations (24 C.F.R. Part 58) require that CDBG-assisted projects must have 
an appropriate environmental review process completed prior to costs for the project being 
incurred.  This process must be documented with an appropriate environmental review record.  
The environmental review process and its documentation are the responsibility of the UGLG.  
The entire project often referred to in these contexts as the entire "footprint" of the project—
not just the portion of the project involving CDBG-funded activities—must be aggregated when 
reviewing the project's environmental impact.  The time required to complete the entire process 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 11 
 

of environmental review varies considerably depending on the facts and circumstances of each 
project.  The process can take as little as a few days to as much as several months.  The time 
requirement for this process is often underestimated by businesses and UGLGs.   
 
Generally, in order for a project application to be viewed as complete for consideration to the 
MSF Board, the environmental review must be complete.  Specific discussion of the 
environmental review requirements, including flowcharts and forms are available in the Grant 
Administration Guide.   

 
Davis-Bacon Act (and related acts):  These federal statutes and their implementing regulations 
require that federally-assisted construction work in excess of $2,000 must have prevailing wage 
rates (determined by the U.S. Department of Labor) paid to all employees working on such 
construction work.  If CDBG funds assist even just a portion of the construction work, then 
Davis-Bacon becomes applicable to the entire construction work.  Note however, that CDBG 
funds can finance activities other than construction work, without triggering Davis-Bacon 
requirements, even though CDBG funds are part of an overall project which may involve 
construction work (i.e. purchase of Machinery and Equipment).   

 
Reporting Requirements (HUD Required Employee Reporting, Business Financial Reporting, 
and Other Record Keeping Requirements):  The benefited business and the UGLG have various, 
periodic, employment and financial reporting and record keeping requirements pursuant to 
CDBG regulations.  Quarterly employment reporting may be required, and all information on 
CDBG assisted activities must be retained until the MSF notifies the UGLG.  
 
Overview of Requirements Related to Incurring Costs:  Incurring costs; including CDBG, local, 
and private costs prior to authorization and/or completion of the environmental review could 
jeopardize the proposed CDBG funding.  Incurring costs includes but is not limited to signing 
option/purchase/easement/lease agreements, signing purchase orders for equipment, and 
signing consultant and construction contracts.  The following provides for timing of procurement 
for engineering & architecture, construction, and purchases.  However, all potential grantees 
must also follow all other CDBG requirements and should contact the CDBG office   prior to 
signing any contract or incurring any cost related to the project.  There are three types of costs:  
 
1. Preliminary Costs – These are costs incurred prior to the grant agreement such as preparing 

the application documents and providing preliminary cost estimates.  Please keep the 
following in mind:   

• This is not considered incurring project costs as long as any and all contracts are for 
these preliminary activities only.   If a contract for these costs includes other costs 
associated with specific grant activities (i.e. design and construction engineering, 
architectural work, administration, etc.), then this would be considered incurring 
costs (see #2 below).  

• These costs must be paid for by the community and/or private match.  Therefore, 
the CDBG procurement requirements do not apply.  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 12 
 

• These costs cannot be included in the project activities/budget and they cannot be 
counted toward the local and/or private match.  

      
2. Exempt (soft) project costs – These are costs for administration contracted by a third party, 

design, construction/oversight engineering, architectural work, and other soft costs 
necessary to carry out the project activities.  The timing and procurement requirements for 
these activities depend on who is paying for these costs.  Please keep the following in mind: 

• If these costs are to be paid for with all non-CDBG funding: 
• This is considered incurring exempt costs so the community must submit a 

written request to the CDBG staff requesting to incur these costs that 
includes the dollar amounts of these costs.  

• This can be done prior to the grant agreement being executed and prior to 
the completion of the environmental review. 

• One hundred percent (100%) of these costs must be paid for with non-
CDBG funds.  Therefore, the CDBG procurement requirements do not apply. 

• The MSF must provide written authorization to incur these costs. 
• The contract must be signed after written authorization has been provided 

by the MSF. 
• These costs must be included in the project activities/budget and can be 

counted toward the local match. 
• If these costs are to be paid for in whole or in part with the CDBG grant funds: 

• This would also be considered incurring exempt costs so the community 
must submit a written request to the CDBG staff requesting to incur these 
costs that includes the dollar amounts of these costs.  

• Since CDBG is paying for a portion of this expense, this cannot be done until 
the grant agreement is executed. 

• The MSF must provide written authorization to incur the costs. 
• The community may need to follow the appropriate CDBG procurement 

requirements.  These requirements depend on the activity and who is 
engaging the consultant, contractor, etc.   

• The contract must be signed after the grant agreement executed and 
written authorization has been provided by the MSF. 

• These costs must be included in the project activities/budget. 
 

3. Non-Exempt (hard) project costs -   These costs include but are not limited to signing 
purchase/easement/lease agreements, ordering materials/machinery/equipment, and 
signing construction contracts.  The timing and procurement requirements for these 
activities depend on who is paying for these costs.  Please keep the following in mind: 

• If these costs are to be paid in whole with private funds: 
• This is considered incurring non-exempt costs so the community must 

submit a written request to the CDBG staff requesting to incur specific 
private costs that includes the dollar amounts for those costs.  

• This can be done prior to the grant agreement, but the environmental 
review and any other applicable CDBG requirements must be complete. 

• One hundred percent (100%) of these costs must be paid for with private 
funds.  Therefore, the CDBG procurement requirements do not apply. 

• The MSF must provide written authorization to incur these costs. 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 13 
 

o The purchase/easement/lease agreement, purchase order, construction 
contract, etc., must be signed after the environmental review has been 
completed and written authorization has been provided by the MSF. 

• If these costs are to be paid for in whole or in part with CDBG funds: 
o This would also be considered incurring non-exempt costs so the 

environmental review and all other applicable CDBG requirements must be 
completed. 

o The grant agreement must be executed. 
o The MSF must provide written authorization to incur these costs. 
o The community must follow the appropriate procurement requirements.   
o The purchase/easement/lease agreement, material/machinery/equipment 

purchase order, construction contract, etc. must be signed after the 
environmental review has been completed, the grant agreement is in place, 
and written authorization has been provided by the MSF. 

  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 14 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

All economic development projects must be financially viable and able to document that the business 
has sufficient management abilities and skills to successfully operate.  Please refer to the Economic 
Development Underwriting (Financial Viability) section for guidance on that evaluation process.  

1. Economic Development:  Direct Assistance to Business  

Eligible under this activity would be assistance to private, for-profit entities as identified in Section 
105(a)(17) of Title I of the HCDA. There are five subcategories of projects eligible for direct assistance to 
private and for-profit businesses: machinery and equipment, job training, rail enhancement, small 
business expansion and utility/ pipeline projects. 

Screening Guidelines: Direct Assistance to Business projects will be evaluated on the following criteria:  

National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to result in the creation of full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI persons. Proposed projects 
are expected to create and/or retain the largest number of positions with the least amount of CDBG 
investment.  

Minimum Leverage Ratio:  Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other public funds. 
Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other private and public funds to 
CDBG funds is 1:1 or greater. 

Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating ten or more permanent full-time positions 
that pay an average hourly rate of at least $9.00 or 75% of the average hourly wage rate of the 
applicable county. 

Minimum Local Participation: Proposed projects are expected to demonstrate local government 
support.  

Economic Impact: Proposed projects are evaluated on their economic impact including the 
diversification of the economic base of the local and State economies. This includes the significance of 
added value the project carries, including financial value added through sales, use of existing local and 
state suppliers and secondary positions created. 

Project Type:  The following are Project Type specific criteria:  

Machinery and Equipment  
• These projects are generally supported by the CDBG Revolving Loan Program or other incentive 

programs available at the MEDC or MSF.   
 

Job Training 
• Up to 50% of grant proceeds may be used for On the Job Training (OJT), but not more than 50% 

of the company’s OJT expenses may be reimbursed per person.  OJT expenses for individual 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 15 
 

trainees must be completed within 6 months of their hiring date.  Employees trained with CDBG 
funds must be retained for 90 days after conclusion of training.  

• Vendor training expenses must have a minimum of 20% match from the employer. Up to 100% 
of grant funds may be used for vendor training costs.  There is no reimbursement for company 
trainers or out of state training expenses.   

• Grant proceeds can only be used for Michigan residents.  
• All positions must meet the average wage thresholds in the applicable Wage/HR category below 

to obtain the corresponding CDBG Assistance per Position. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Rail Enhancement 
• CDBG portion may not exceed more than 50% of total cost of necessary rail improvement.  
• The project must provide a minimum of 25 positions.  
• MDOT must support rail enhancement projects (minimum 10% MDOT rail funds if available or 

letter of support if MDOT rail funds are not available).  
• All positions must meet the average wage thresholds in the applicable Wage/HR category below 

to obtain the corresponding CDBG Assistance per Position.  

Wage/HR CDBG Assistance Per Position 

$9.00-$11.99 Up to $4,000/position 

$12.00-$14.99 Up to $6,000/position 

$15.00-$16.99 Up to $8,000/position 

$17.00 & up Up to $10,000/position 

 
Small Business Expansion  
• These projects do not have any additional criteria for consideration.  
 
Utility and Pipeline Projects 
• Funds for this type of project may be used where:  

o existing service placement impedes development and requires relocation  

Wage/HR CDBG Assistance Per Position 

$9.00-$11.99 up to $4,000/position 

$12.00-$14.99 up to $6,000/position 

$15.00-$16.99 up to $8,000/position 

$17.00 & up up to $10,000/position 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 16 
 

o a significant case can be made for the extension or enhancement of service delivery, 
including inability of the service provider to fund the necessary cost using a five year 
recuperation schedule.  

• The project must provide a minimum of 25 positions.  
• All positions must meet the average wage thresholds in the applicable Wage/HR category below 

to obtain the corresponding CDBG Assistance per Position. 

Wage/HR CDBG Assistance Per Position 

$9.00-$11.99 Up to $4,000/position 

$12.00-$14.99 Up to $6,000/position 

$15.00-$16.99 Up to $8,000/position 

$17.00 & up Up to $10,000/position 

 

Maximum Grant Amount: None. 

2.  Economic Development – Infrastructure: Business Development 

Communities may request grants to provide public infrastructure improvements necessary for the 
location, expansion, and/or retention of a specific for-profit business firm(s) which is engaged in an 
economic base activity (e.g. - manufacturing, point-of-destination tourism, headquarter operations, 
major multi-state distribution facility).  A tourism point of destination is an entity with multiple 
amenities (more than three) that provide hospitality services such as accommodations, foods and 
beverages, tours and souvenirs, in or near a community or region known for its attraction of tourists.  A 
tourism point of destination can also be an attraction (built attraction), or other area (natural attraction) 
that is dependent to a significant extent on the revenues accruing from tourism.  A tourism point of 
destination must have the emphasis on promoting a particular region for the purpose of increasing 
commerce through exporting goods and services to non-local residents. Eligible under this activity would 
be public improvements, as identified in Section 105(a)(2) of Title I of the HCDA.  

Screening Guidelines: Business Development Infrastructure projects will be evaluated on the following 
criteria: 

Minimum Local Participation: Proposed public infrastructure projects are expected to have local 
government funding for public infrastructure activities. A minimum of ten (10%) percent local 
government cash match is required.   

Economic Impact: Proposed projects are evaluated on their economic impact, including the 
diversification of the economic base of the local and State economies. This includes the significance of 
added value the project carries, including financial value added through sales, use of existing local and 
state suppliers and secondary positions created. 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 17 
 

Project Type: Examples of eligible public infrastructure projects include the following items: public water 
or sanitary sewer lines and related facilities, streets, roads, bridges, sidewalks, parking facilities, 
pedestrian malls, alleys, drainage systems, waterways, publicly-owned utilities and systems, and 
projects designed to reduce, eliminate or prevent the spread of identified soil or groundwater 
contamination. 

• Category A:  
o National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to result in the creation of full-time 

equivalent (FTE) positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI 
persons. Proposed projects are expected to create and/or retain the largest number of 
positions with the least amount of CDBG investment. Funding priority will be given to 
projects where the amount of CDBG funds per position created and/or retained is $10,000 
or less.  

o Minimum Leverage Ratio: Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other 
public funds. Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other 
private and public funds to CDBG funds is 1:1 or greater.  

o Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating ten or more permanent, full-
time positions that pay an average hourly rate of at least $9.00 or 75% of the average hourly 
wage rate of the applicable county. 

• Category B:  
o National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to result in the creation of full-time 

equivalent (FTE) positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI 
persons. Proposed projects are expected to create and/or retain the largest number of 
positions with the least amount of CDBG investment. Funding priority will be given to 
projects where the amount of CDBG funds per position created and/or retained is $20,000 
or less.  

o Minimum Leverage Ratio: Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other 
public funds. Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other 
private and public funds to CDBG funds is 2:1 or greater.  

o Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating 25, or more, permanent, full-
time positions that pay an average hourly rate of at least $11.00 or 85% of the average 
hourly wage rate of the applicable county.  

• Category C:  
o National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to result in the creation of full-time 

equivalent (FTE) positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI 
persons. Proposed projects are expected to create and/or retain the largest number of 
positions with the least amount of CDBG investment. Funding priority will be given to 
projects where the amount of CDBG funds per position created and/or retained is $35,000 
or less.  

o Minimum Leverage Ratio: Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other 
public funds. Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other 
private and public funds to CDBG funds is 3:1 or greater.  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 18 
 

o Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating 50, or more, permanent, full-
time positions that pay an average hourly rate of at least $14.00 or 95% of the average 
hourly wage rate of the applicable county.  

Maximum Grant Amount: None. 

3. Economic Development: Revolving Loan Funds and Regional Revolving Loan Funds  

During program year 2012, the MSF will seek to finalize the regionalization of all existing local CDBG 
funded revolving loan funds (RLFs). The intent of the RLFs is to provide CDBG eligible loans to businesses 
within the identified regional territory. Repayments of the loans back to the RLF with interest generates 
“program income” that is used to cover fund administrative expenses and provides additional funding 
for additional CDBG eligible loans to businesses.  As of December 31, 2011, over 75% of the existing 
funds had been inactive for over 12 months. 

The MSF intends to support the formation or identification of no more than nine regional entities, 
identified as eligible within HCDA 105(a)15.  These entities will operate in non-entitlement areas within 
the state and will coordinate with county governments and UGLG based funds within the region to 
centralize cash and program income as well as potentially play a role in assisting with the management 
of loan portfolios in accordance with MSF and HUD requirements. Regionalization will create 
opportunities for greater access to available capital for the issuance of CDBG eligible loans, gain 
efficiency through increased underwriting expertise and streamline the MSF approval process. The MSF 
may also make additional CDBG funds available to UGLG, or RRLF, for the purpose of providing capital 
for the issuance of CDBG eligible loans to small businesses whose projects meet a national objective. 

Eligible under the RLF activity would be assistance to private, for-profit entities as identified in Section 
105(a)(17) of Title I of the HCDA. RLFs will provide loans, loan guarantees, collateral enhancement, 
working capital, and other allowable mechanisms through either existing RLFs based within a specific 
UGLG or through newly established Regional Revolving Loan Funds (“RRLF”) acting through a Joint 
Agreement between county governments, MSF and designated Regional Revolving Loan Fund Managers 
(“RRLFM”).  

Screening Guidelines:  Proposals and applications are considered on a continuous basis when funded 
with existing Program Income maintained at, or transferred to, an UGLG or RRLF. Only a RRLF or UGLG is 
eligible to apply for new CDBG funds. Existing UGLG based funds which require additional grant dollars 
from the MSF for an eligible project in order to meet the Continuing Activity definition may be eligible to 
receive grant dollars provided that 1) they exhaust their cash balance first and 2) the proportion of 
program income equal to the proportion of total project funding associated with new grant dollars be 
returned to the state and not retained by the UGLG based RLF.   

National Objectives: Proposed projects are expected to result in the creation of full-time equivalent 
(FTE) positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI persons. Proposed 
projects are expected to create and/or retain the largest number of positions with the least amount of 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 19 
 

RLF investment. When determined to be reasonable by the MSF, applicants may also utilize Area Wide 
Benefit standards. 

Proposed projects may also result in the Elimination of Slum and Blight if the RLF or RRLF, or its 
contractor, have allowed for the Elimination of Slum and Blight as an approved National Objective within 
their Uniform Reuse and Administration Plan or Reuse Plan.  

Minimum Leverage Ratio:  Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other public funds. 
Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other private and public funds to 
CDBG funds is 1:1 or greater. 

Project Type:  Eligible project types are located within the Uniform Reuse and Administrative Guide of a 
RRLF or within an UGLG based RLF’s Reuse Plan. All plans must be approved by the MSF. Typically, 
projects are loans or other commercial credit extensions to for-profit businesses located within the 
funds service area.   The RLF must carry out specific activities outlined below which, in turn, generate 
payments to the RLF.  

Only a UGLG or RRLF that meets the MSF’s definition of a Continuing Activity is eligible to apply for 
CDBG Grants. The MSF defines a “Continuing Activity” as the successful funding of a CDBG eligible loan 
or extension of commercial credit in the preceding twelve months or, in cases in which the RLF had 
insufficient funds to advance on a proper loan request, a request for assistance was made of the MSF 
and a loan/grant was approved, with a loan/grant agreement having been signed. Additionally, the MSF 
includes within its definition of Continuing Activity that the fund must perform such activity as described 
above such that normal monitoring of the Fund resulted in no major findings or issues which remain 
unresolved.  

RLFs shall have 12 months to become compliant with the Continuing Activity definition beginning with 
the approval of this document by the MSF.  

The proceeds of loans made under this program are for eligible activities under Section 105(a) of Title 1 
of the HCDA and are limited to the following: 

• Project based land acquisition  
• Construction of a building and other improvements 
• Renovation of an existing building to accommodate a business 
• Purchase of Capital Equipment 
• Purchase an existing building for a known business  
• Finance accounts receivables and inventory 
• Improve a site for a known business concern 
• Assistance to micro-enterprises  
• Some specific workforce training projects (seek additional info from State Program) 
• Business Acquisition (highly situational-seek additional info from State Program) 

 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 20 
 

The Uniform Reuse and Administration Plan (URAP) describe ineligible uses of loan proceeds under this 
program. RLFs that have not approved the URAP are not subject to its prohibitions but are otherwise 
subject to the current MSF approved Reuse Plan in place at the time the project is approved. 

Financial Viability: In addition to the Financial Viability guidance provided in this document, proposed 
projects are expected to demonstrate a reasonable expectation of repayment, with the expectation 
having been supported by meaningful and prudent due diligence on the part of the UGLG based RLF or 
RRLF, or its contractor.  

In addition to project viability, on a no less than annual basis the MSF will review the books and records 
of all RLFs and RRLF to ensure that each RLF and RRLF is compliant with all state and federal laws and 
policies as well as operating under sound risk management and financial accounting practices.  This will 
include a review of the UGLG’s annual audit documents for either the RLF or RRLF.  The MSF reserves 
the right to decline a project if it is determined that an applicant has not provided accounting and 
reporting of RLF activities to the standards requested by the MSF, and/or has failed to act, in the 
judgment of the MSF, prudently with respect to applicable loan decision making or due diligence 
practices. 

Non Program Income loans made by RLFM’s: Loans utilizing certain repaid CDBG funds pursuant to and 
compliant with HCDA Section 105(a)(15) are no longer Program Income but are subject to MSF oversight 
via the URAP as amended from time to time. The MSF will monitor and review these transactions in 
accordance with the URAP. 

Maximum Grant Amount: None. 

4.  Economic Development: Unique Business Development Grants 

Innovative and creative funding requests may be considered by the MSF based on special and/or unique 
needs or situations requiring innovative program approaches not specifically provided for in regular 
economic development, downtown development, planning, blight elimination, and infrastructure 
programs. This may include, but is not limited to, brownfield site redevelopment, targeted industry 
development, position training, general public infrastructure, building and building rehabilitation 
activities, CDBG Section 108 loan guarantees, activities and services listed in the above categories which 
do not meet identified screening or selection criteria and/or projects associated with other State or 
Federally funded initiatives. 

Selection guidelines, project periods, and grant amounts will be determined and tailored for each 
specific project proposal, but will always take into account the national objective, leverage ratio, 
position creation, local participation and financial viability. All funding considerations shall be subject to 
the approval and oversight authority of the MSF and must be made in compliance with federal CDBG 
regulations and requirements and other applicable laws. 

Maximum Grant Amount: None. 
  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 21 
 

 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS  

For Downtown Development Projects, the term “traditional downtown”  is defined as a grouping of 20 
or more commercial parcels of property that include multi-story buildings of historical or architectural 
significance.  The area must have been zoned, planned or used for commercial development for 50+ 
years.  The area must consist of, primarily, zero-lot-line development; have pedestrian friendly 
infrastructure, and an appropriate mix of business and services. 

All Downtown Development Projects benefiting a business must be financially viable and the UGLG must 
be able to document that the business has sufficient management abilities and skills to successfully 
operate.  Please refer to the Economic Development Underwriting (Financial Viability) section for 
guidance on that evaluation process. 

1. Downtown Development- Infrastructure: Downtown Position Creation 

The Downtown Infrastructure Program enables a community to improve the downtown’s infrastructure 
quality and reduce redevelopment costs to make a project feasible. This program is restricted to 
downtown infrastructure improvements tied to new commercial/mixed-use development activities that 
require additional infrastructure to create new economic opportunities and position creation activity. 
Eligible under this activity would be public improvements, as identified in Section 105(a)(2) of Title I of 
the HCDA.  Public infrastructure includes items located on public property, such as: parking facilities, 
streetscape, public water or sanitary sewer lines and related facilities, demolition as part of a larger 
project, streets, roads, bridges, private utilities and public utilities. 

Screening Guidelines: Downtown infrastructure projects will be evaluated on the following criteria:  

National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to result in the creation of full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI persons. Proposed projects 
are expected to create and/or retain the largest number of positions with the least amount of CDBG 
investment. Funding priority will be given where the funds per position created is up to $25,000 based 
on the number of positions created or retained.  

Minimum Leverage Ratio: Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other public funds. 
Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other private and public funds to 
CDBG funds is 1:1 or greater.  

Project Type: Projects will be located in a traditional downtown, should be located in a Downtown 
Development Authority or other like-district. Projects will be evaluated on completeness of project and 
must have local organizational capacity to successfully complete this project.   

Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating the greatest amount of permanent full-time 
positions.  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 22 
 

Minimum Local Participation: Proposed projects are expected to have local government funding 
participation. A minimum of ten (10%) percent local government cash match is required. Funding 
priority will be given to projects with the highest percentage of local matching funds. 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $750,000. 

2.  Downtown Development- Façade Improvements 

Grants are available for communities that seek to target areas of traditional downtowns for facade 
improvements which will have a significant impact on the downtown/community. The Downtown 
Façade Program is structured to provide commercial/mixed-use building façade improvements to 
sustain and minimize deterioration of traditional downtowns. This program is based on the premise that 
the exterior improvements will stimulate additional private investment in the buildings and the 
surrounding area, attract and increase additional customers, thereby resulting in additional downtown 
economic opportunities. Eligible under this activity would be rehabilitation and reconstruction of 
buildings, as identified in Section 105(a)(4) of Title I of the HCDA.  

Screening Guidelines: Downtown Façade projects will be evaluated on the following criteria:  

National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to meet the national objective of either benefiting a 
population of individuals of whom at least 51% reside in LMI households, or projects that will result in 
the creation of full-time equivalent (FTE) positions of which at least 51% of the created positions will be 
held by LMI persons. Preference will be given to projects with position creation commitments. For 
position creation or retention projects, funding priority will be given to projects creating five or more 
permanent, full-time equivalent positions and where the amount of CDBG funds per position created is 
$25,000 or less.  

Communities that are qualified as LMI communities with a population over 15,000 must include at least 
five properties to meet the area wide benefit national objective for this initiative.  Those communities 
under 15,000 must have at least two properties to meet the area wide benefit national objective.   

Minimum Leverage Ratio: None required for this program.  

Project Type: Projects will be located in a traditional downtown, should be located in a Downtown 
Development Authority or other like-district and all projects must meet the Secretary of Interior’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation. Projects will be evaluated on completeness of project and must have local 
organizational capacity to successfully complete this project.  Priority will be given to communities 
based on the following:  

• Category A:  Higher Priority  
o Within traditional downtown  

 Located in a highly visible location  
 Located in a DDA or other like district 

o Prior use of downtown development incentives (TIFs, abatements, etc.) 
o Local organizational capacity to successfully complete this project 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 23 
 

o Have a full-time downtown development professional or community staff member able 
to administer the project  

o The project will consist of four or more buildings that have the following characteristics: 
 Multi-story Building 
 Mixed-use components  
 Projects with façade only scope (no interior) 
 Main Street Communities  
 Currently has a local façade program  
 Completed the Main Street Façade Design Program  
 Eligible for Historic or Contributing Designation 
 Partially or completely vacant building being returned to active use 

o The community has adopted a downtown development plan.  
• Category B: Lower Priority  

o Within traditional Downtown  
 Located in a highly visible location  
 Located in a DDA or other like district 

o Prior use of downtown development incentives (TIFs, abatements, etc.) 
o Local organizational capacity to successfully complete this project 
o Have a full-time downtown development professional or community staff member able 

to administer the project  
 

o The project will consist of two or more buildings that have the following characteristics: 
 Multi-story Building 
 Single use buildings 
 Not eligible for Historic or Contributing Designation 

o The community has adopted a downtown development plan.  
 

Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating the greatest amount of permanent full-time 
positions.  

Minimum Local Participation: Funding priorities will be given to communities with the highest 
percentage of private matching funds (committed funds only), but all projects must have a contribution 
of at least 25% of the total project costs. Preference will also be given to communities that provide 
additional local support either through tax abatement, direct grant or other financial assistance to the 
project.  Communities that do not request administrative costs or use administrative costs as match will 
also be considered as providing additional local support.  

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $400,000 and must be 
for a minimum amount of $30,000. 

3. Signature Building 

Grants are available for communities seeking acquisition of vacant, partially vacant or substantially 
underused buildings located in traditional downtowns for rehabilitation into a commercial/mixed use 
building that will result in position creation. CDBG funding can only be utilized for property acquisition 
activities. 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 24 
 

The CDBG funding allows the community and/or the developer to acquire property that a developer 
would not typically purchase and redevelop due to the substantial amount of money required to 
rehabilitate, that its current owners are experiencing challenges with developing and/or maintaining, 
and it is currently being underused. Therefore, this program gives the community 
availability/accessibility to funding to stimulate economic opportunity within a traditional downtown. 
Eligible under this activity would be acquisition of real property, as identified in Section 105(a)(1) of Title 
I of the HCDA. Ineligible activities for this initiative include exclusively residential structures; government 
owned buildings, except for Land Bank properties, in-kind donations, renovation of building, appraisals, 
and structural analysis or other soft costs.  

Screening Guidelines: Downtown Signature Building projects will be evaluated on the following criteria:  

National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to meet the national objective of creating positions 
and 51% of the created positions will be held by LMI persons. For position creation or retention projects, 
funding priority will be given to projects creating five or more permanent, full-time equivalent positions 
and where the amount of CDBG funds per position created is $25,000 or less.  

Minimum Leverage Ratio: Proposed projects are expected to leverage private and other public funds. 
Funding priority will be given to projects when the leverage ratio of all other private and public funds to 
CDBG funds is 1:1 or greater.  

Project Type: Projects will be located in a traditional downtown, should be located in a Downtown 
Development Authority or other like-district, and the project must be accompanied by at least one 
appraisal, along with the current SEV, documentation that all taxes are current, as well as verification 
that non-mortgage liens have not been placed on the property. Projects will be evaluated on 
completeness of project and must have local organizational capacity to successfully complete this 
project.  Priority will be given to communities based on the following: 

• Category A: Higher Priority  
o The project is a signature, troubled building in the downtown that has the following 

characteristics:  
 Multi-story building  
 Mixed use 
 Reuse will address an underserved market 
 Zero lot line building  
 Significant structure within the downtown district 

o The property is in a historic district or is historically registered. 
o Vacant for three years or more 
o The property has sufficient parking for a rehabilitated building or the parking will be 

created as part of the project  
o Structural analysis has been completed for the building  
o A full time downtown development professional or community staff member able to 

administer the project 
• Category B: Lower Priority  

o The project is a signature, troubled building in the downtown 
 single-story building  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 25 
 

 Significant structure within the downtown district 
o The property is in a historic district or is historically registered. 
o Vacant, partially vacant or underused for three years or more;  
o The property has sufficient parking for a rehabilitated building or the parking will be 

created as part of the project  
o Structural analysis has been completed for the building  
o A full time downtown development professional or community staff member able to 

administer the project 
 

Position Creation: Priority will be given to projects creating the greatest amount of permanent full-time 
positions.  

Minimum Local Participation: Funding priorities will be given to communities with the highest 
percentage of private and/or public matching funds (committed funds only), but all projects must have a 
contribution of at least 25% of the total acquisition costs. Preference will also be given to communities 
that provide additional local support either through tax abatement, direct grant or other financial 
assistance to the project.  

Financial Viability: The business must be financially viable and able to document that it has sufficient 
management abilities and skills to rehabilitate the building and create positions. The business may be 
subject to a background check. 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $500,000. 

4. Unique Downtown Development Grants 

Innovative and creative funding requests may be considered by the MSF based on special and/or unique 
needs or situations requiring innovative program approaches not specifically provided for in regular 
economic development, downtown development, planning, blight elimination, and infrastructure 
programs. This may include, but is not limited to, incubator/entrepreneur development, rural 
community development, brownfield site redevelopment, general public infrastructure, building and 
building rehabilitation activities, CDBG Section 108 loan guarantees, activities and services listed in the 
above categories which do not meet identified screening or selection criteria and/or projects associated 
with other State or Federally funded initiatives. 

Selection guidelines, project periods, and grant amounts will be determined and tailored for each 
specific project proposal, but will always take into account the national objective, leverage ratio, 
position creation, local participation and financial viability. Funding considerations shall be subject to the 
approval and oversight authority of the MSF and must be made in compliance with federal CDBG 
regulations and requirements and other applicable laws. 

Maximum Grant Amount:  None. 
 

 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 26 
 

PLANNING PROGRAM SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Economic and downtown development planning grants may be available to help communities 
accomplish project specific planning and design work which is likely to lead to an eligible economic 
development implementation project. Eligible under this activity would be planning and capacity 
building, as identified in Section 105(a)(12) of Title I of the of the HCDA. CDBG Planning funding cannot 
be utilized to create, update, or provide information solely for a community to meet legislatively 
mandated community planning requirements, including Downtown Development Authority plans. 

1. Planning: Economic Development Planning 

Projects will only be considered that can demonstrate that the planning grant will likely lead to an 
eligible implementation project. The planning study must be specific, with identified goals and 
outcomes. 

Screening Guidelines: Economic development planning proposals will be evaluated on the following 
criteria:  

National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to meet the national objective of likelihood for near 
term position creation where at least 51 percent of the positions are held by LMI persons.  

Minimum Leverage Ratio: None required for this program.  

Minimum Local Participation: Funding priorities will be given to communities with a higher percentage 
of matching funds (committed funds only), but a cash match equal to the awarded CDBG funds is 
required. 

Financial Viability: Evaluation not required for this program. 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $100,000. 

2.  Planning: Downtown Planning 

The Downtown Planning Program enables a community to identify and determine what activities the 
community could do to increase the viability/accessibility of economic opportunities to revitalize and 
stimulate position creation within the downtown area.  Planning projects will only be considered that 
can demonstrate that the planning grant will likely lead to an eligible implementation project. The 
planning study must be building or area specific, with identified goals and outcomes.  Ineligible activities 
for this initiative include activities that create, update, or provide information solely for a community to 
meet legislatively mandated requirements (DDA, TIF, Master Plans) and/or engineering and design work 
for a specific project.  

Screening Guidelines: Downtown development planning grant proposals will be evaluated based on the 
following criteria:  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 27 
 

National Objective:  Proposed projects are expected to meet the national objective of likelihood for near 
term position creation where at least 51 percent of the positions are held by LMI persons.  

Project Type:  Projects will be evaluated on completeness of project and must have local organizational 
capacity to successfully complete this project.  Funding priority will be given to projects that 
demonstrate the following:    

• Within traditional downtown, in a highly visible location (see definition under Downtown 
Development Programs).  

• Located in a DDA or other like district 
• Two/four years potential with 51% low/mod position creation 
• High impact on downtown 

 
Minimum Leverage Ratio: None required for this program.  

Minimum Local Participation: Funding priorities will be given to communities with a higher percentage 
of matching funds (committed funds only), but a cash match equal to the awarded CDBG funds is 
required.  

Financial Viability: Evaluation not required for this program. 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $100,000. 
 
  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 28 
 

BLIGHT ELMINATION PROGRAM SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

The Michigan CDBG Program for blight elimination is allowable anywhere within the community that is 
designated a slum or blighted area. Eligible under this activity would be property acquisition, 
clearance/demolition, historic preservation, and building rehabilitation (only to the extent necessary to 
eliminate specific conditions detrimental to public health and safety), as identified in Section 105(a) of 
Title I of the HCDA.  Ineligible activities for this initiative include privately owned structures (unless 
related to renovation), exclusively residential structures, demolition of historic structures and state 
owned buildings, except for Land Bank Properties.  

Screening Guidelines: Blight Elimination grants will be evaluated on the following criteria.  

National Objective: Proposed projects must meet the national objective of elimination or prevention of 
slums and blight on a spot or area wide basis. For a property to be eligible, it must meet the definition of 
blight as defined in the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act 381 of 1996, MCL 125.2652 (e)(i-iv) 
and (vii).  

Minimum Leverage Ratio: None required for this program.  

Project Type:  Funding priority will be given to the demolition of vacant, deteriorated and abandoned 
buildings which are considered to be detrimental to public health and safety.  Projects will be evaluated 
on completeness of project and must have local organizational capacity to successfully complete this 
project.   

• Category A: Higher Priority  
o Within traditional Downtown or neighborhood or high pedestrian areas  
o Meets multiple definitions for blight 
o Eligible for minimum match of 25%  

• Category B: Lower Priority  
o Outside of traditional Downtown, but still located in pedestrian oriented area 
o Tax foreclosed properties  
o May require higher match amount than 25%.   

 
Minimum Local Participation: Proposed projects are expected to have local funding participation. A 
minimum of 25% committed cash match is required. Funding priority will be given to projects with the 
highest percentage of local matching funds.  

Project Viability: The community must be able to demonstrate that their proposed project is clearly 
eliminating objectively determinable signs of blight and is strictly limited to eliminating specific instances 
of blight (spot blight). 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum grant amount shall not exceed $1,000,000. 
 

 



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 29 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE (AREA BENEFIT) PROGRAM SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Infrastructure grants are available to help communities upgrade existing public infrastructure systems 
either by replacing deteriorating, obsolete systems or by adding capacity to existing public infrastructure 
services in need of upgrade will be given priority. Public infrastructure includes items located on public 
property, such as: parking facilities, streetscape, public water or sanitary sewer lines and related 
facilities, streets, roads, bridges, privately owned utilities and publically owned utilities. Eligible under 
this activity would be public facilities and improvements and privately owned utilities, as identified in 
Section 105(a)(2) of Title I of the of the HCDA. 

1.  Infrastructure Grants:  Downtown Infrastructure Grants 

Downtown Infrastructure Grants (DIG) are available for public infrastructure projects that upgrade 
existing public infrastructure systems in a traditional downtown. Announcement of this activity will be 
made to eligible communities as funding becomes available. Competitive ranking of projects will be 
based on the Proposals received and awards will be based on the availability of funds. 

Screening Guidelines: Downtown infrastructure projects will be evaluated based on the following 
criteria:  

National Objective: Proposed projects are expected to meet the national objective of providing benefit 
to a population of individuals of whom at least 51 percent reside in low to moderate-income 
households.  

Minimum Leverage Ratio:  Projects with the higher combined matching funds (all matching funds 
including local-committed funds only) will be given priority.  

Project Type: Eligible projects will demonstrate that: 

• they are located in a traditional downtown; 
• the community has not received a 2010 DIG grant; 
• the community did not apply for a 2011 Farm to Food grant; 
• the community has a maintenance plan for the proposed projects; and 
• the project is able to be completed within one year of the grant agreement sign date. 

Priority will be given to communities that demonstrate: 

• the community does not have any open grants that have not been drawn down; 
• the project is in a DDA, or PSD/BID/BIZ, or similar; and 
• the community has incorporated innovative design elements.  

Minimum Local Participation: Proposed projects are expected to have local government funding 
participation. A minimum of ten (10%) percent local government committed cash match is required. 
Funding priority will be given to projects with the highest percentage of local matching funds.  



MSF CDBG APPLICATION GUIDE  

Michigan Strategic Fund- PY 2012 (Proposed June 27, 2012) Page 30 
 

Financial Viability: Evaluation not required for this program. 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $750,000. Applications 
will be accepted and grants awarded as funding availability allows. 

2. Infrastructure Grants:  Infrastructure Capacity Enhancement 

Grants are available for public works projects that upgrade existing public infrastructure systems either 
by replacing deteriorating or obsolete systems or by adding capacity to existing systems. Announcement 
of this activity will be made to eligible communities as funding becomes available. Competitive ranking 
of projects will be based on the Proposals received and awards will be based on the availability of funds. 

Screening Guidelines: Infrastructure Capacity Enhancement projects will be evaluated based on the 
following criteria:  

National Policy Objective:  Proposed projects are expected to meet the national objective of providing 
benefit to a population of individuals of whom at least 51 percent reside in low to moderate-income 
households.  

Project Type:  While community and recreational facilities are eligible as are new infrastructure projects, 
public infrastructure projects that address necessary improvements to existing public infrastructure 
services in need of upgrade will be given priority. Priority will be given to communities that 
demonstrate: 

• the project will commence within the current calendar year; 
• the project has the highest combined matching funds; and 
• the project has a low cost per resident rate. Minimum Local Participation: Funding priority will 

be given to communities with the higher percentage of local matching funds (committed funds 
only) and all other matching funds from other sources (committed funds only) for the 
applicant’s proposed project. 

Maximum Grant Amount: The maximum individual grant award will not exceed $1,000,000. Applications 
will be accepted and grants awarded as funding availability allows. 






























































































































	A.  MSF Board Agenda - June 27, 2012 
	Proposed Meeting Minutes - May 23, 2012
	B.  Michigan Business Development Program 
	1.  Barracuda Networks, Inc. 
	2.  Brose New Boston
	C.  21st Century Jobs Fund Program - Pure Michigan Venture Development Fund
	D.  Marketing - Official Pure Michigan Travel Guide
	E.  Tribal Gaming MOU
	F.  Community Development Block Grant Program
	1.  2012 Downtown Infrastructure Grant [DIG] Project
	2.  2012 Application Guide and Policies
	G.  International Trade Crossing Agreement



